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Director’s Statement

EEHE

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
mainly engaged in (i) the processing and trading of used
computer-related components business; (ii) the money
lending business; (iii) the securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business; and (iv) the clothes and
beauty products business.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue amounted to approximately HK$66.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 48.2% as
compared with the revenue of approximately HK$128.0
million in 2022. In relation to the Group’s revenue,
approximately 27.9% results from the processing
and trading of used computer-related components,
approximately 18.5% resulted from interest income
earned from money lending business, approximately
1.8% contributed from securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business and approximately 51.9%
contributed by clothes and beauty products business.

Gross profit from operation for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$15.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 5.0% as
compared with the gross profit of approximately HK$16.0
million in 2022. The Group's net profit for the year was
approximately HK$40.0 million, which was mainly due to
the reversal of provision for expected credit loss (“ECL")
on trade, other and loan receivables of approximately
HK$18.3 million recognised during 2023 and the gain
on the disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$29.3
million.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, interest income
earned from money lending business was approximately
HK$12.2 million.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

In view of the highly unpredictable business environment,
we are evaluating different business segments within the
Group and reposition our strategy and business operation
in more optimistic business segments.

The Group will continue to seek potential investment
and business opportunities for broadening its income
stream and further development of the existing business
segments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend our sincere thanks to our
customers, suppliers and staff for their continued support
and contribution to the Group during the year.

ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W RS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$66.3 million
which represented a decrease of approximately 48.2% as
compared to the corresponding figure for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2023
was approximately HK$15.2 million as compared to
approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

During the year, the clothes and beauty products business
continued to contribute a significant percentage to our
revenue. We continue to be optimistic at this business
segment and will capture more market opportunities as
and when appropriate. On the other hand, the sales and
marketing of electronic equipment and related products
was still an important source of income of the Group. In
addition, the financial arm of the Group comprising of
securities brokerage, placing and underwriting business
and money lending business also contributed to the
revenue of the Group during the year. The revenue and
net loss or profit for each business segment for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out as below:

Used
computer-
related
components

—FEK
HEAHS
HK$'000

FET

Yo &
(EBRFE) /HH

18,488
(137)

Revenue
Net (loss)/profit
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current ratio Bt X
Gearing ratio (defined as the total BERBEEE(EER

borrowings divided by total equity)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$28.4 million, net current
assets of approximately HK$242.9 million, total assets of
approximately HK$264.0 million and shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$243.3 million.

The Group generally financed its operations through
internally-generated cash flows and Shareholders’ equity.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the amount of
the total outstanding loan receivables is approximately
HK$115.5 million with 8-10% interest rate and all loan
receivables are recoverable within 1 year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
amounts for the largest borrower and the five largest
borrowers in aggregate are approximately HK$11.6
million and HK$52.1 million, respectively, accounted
for approximately 10.0% and 45.1% of the total loan
receivables of the Company.

The Group normally reaches out the target customers
through the Group’s reputation in the financial services
industry, the existing business network and the finance
magazine. The Group targets both retail and corporate
customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB BT

When determining loan tenure, the Group will normally
take into factors including, but not limited to personal
financial background and repayment ability of the
borrowers, internal credit checking results, the borrowers’
repayment record in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral,
the availability of any guarantee. The Group will base
on the information gathered from the borrowers to
determine the loan tenure.

When determining the interest rate of the loan, the
Group will take reference to the past record of interest
rate used by the Group and market rate for the interest
rate.

In addition, the Group funds the money lending
transaction through our internal resources. As at 31
December 2023, the loan receivables of approximately
HK$115.5 million will mature on or before 31 December
2023 and loan receivables were neither secured by
collaterals or any guarantee as at 31 December 2023.
As at 31 December 2023, the maturity profile of the
loan receivables of approximately HK$115.5 million were
within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. The Company has complied with requirements
set out in chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing Rules
when it granted the loans to each of the borrower(s),
whose loan(s) was still outstanding as at 31 December
2023. The Company has not had an agreement,
arrangement, understanding or undertaking (whether
formal or informal and whether express or implied) with
a connected person with respect to the grant of loans to
the borrower(s) whose loan(s) was still outstanding as at
31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Risk management policies

The Group has developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business. The credit policy
and procedures manual specifies, among others, the
loan application, credit approval and monitoring ongoing
credit risk procedures. Prior to grant of a loan to a
borrower, the Group carries out credit risk assessment
on the borrower, taking into account, among other
things, the background and character of the borrowers,
shareholders’ background, character, and management
capability (if any), purpose of the loan, value of collateral
and guarantee (if any), where applicable, relevant public
searches and the financial strength of the borrower,
shareholder and guarantor.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2023, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$600,000,000 divided into
100,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.006 each. The
authorised share capital had no change during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Issued share capital

As at 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$9,231,219 divided into 1,538,536,566
shares of HK$0.006 each. There was no movement for
the number of shares in issue of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W RS

EXCHANGE RATE

Most of sales in the current year were denominated in
United States dollars, whilst the majority of the Group’s
expenses were denominated in United States dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Although the Group
currently does not maintain any hedging policy to
hedge against foreign exchange exposure that may arise
from the above transactions, the management team
continuously assesses the foreign currency exposure,
with an aim to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on the Group’s business operations.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On 23 April 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on a best
effort basis, up to 580,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share to not less
than six placees who and whose beneficial owners were
independent third parties (the “Placing”). The placing
shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company on
16 July 2021.

The Placing was completed on 2 August 2021. The net
proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses) from the Placing amounted to
approximately HK$56.2 million. The net proceeds were
intended to be used for the further development and
operations of the virtual asset trading platform of the
Group.
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As at 31 December 2023,
utilised as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis

the net proceeds had been n
&

Unutilised
amount as at
31 December

BB BT

CECSEt-ASt B
RIBFHECBIEUTRE
Utilised amount
for the year Unutilised

ended amount as at  Expected timeline for the

31 December 31 December  application of the unutilised

Use of net proceeds Allocation 2022 2023 2023  proceeds
RZBZZF RBE-Z-Z=F RZBZ=F
tZA=+-B%x +ZR=+-BLk +ZA=t-BX HABAMEREZ
FERERRAR b BALHE FECHALE HRELE RADAREXR
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BE#T BEFT BE#FT BEET
Web application development of the virtual asset 18.0 115 6.1 5.4 By 31 December 2024
trading platform
EREERGTaNBRERRYE RZZZWEFZA=F+—HZH
Acquisition of equipment and the related 11.0 7.0 3.2 3.8 By 31 December 2024
installation and technical support services fees
BERBEREBZERRITEBEREE R-B-MEF-A=+-B2ZH
Cloud infrastructure and professional network 8.1 - - - -
management services fee
EERRRREEBRERREE -
Staff costs and consultancy fees for operational 8.4 6.6 4.6 2 By 31 December 2024
and technical staff and external consultants
BIERBRMABARNMBEROE IR AR R-B-WEF-A=+—-B2ZH
BHEE
Digital and data securities services fee 24 1.2 - 1.2 By 31 December 2024
HFREBESRBE RZTZME+ZA=+—RAZH
Working capital in operating the virtual asset 83 7.9 - 7.9 By 31 December 2024
trading platform, including but not limited to
purchasing digital assets inventories and
purchasing insurance
BEEREERSTANZELES B RIZZWE+ZA=F+—HZH
BIRRBERTEEFERBERR
Total 56.2 34.2 13.9 203
@t
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS EERE

As at 31 December 2023, total market value for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") of the Group was approximately HK$78.3
.0 million).
Board considers that the investments with market value
accounting for more than 5% of the Group’s total assets

million (2022: approximately HK$75

as at 31 December 2023 as significant investments.

The
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB BT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately HK$6.6 million (2022: unrealised loss of
approximately HK$21.5 million). For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group recognised realised losses on
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$0.2 million

(2022: realised gain of approximately HK$4.8 million).

Details of the financial assets at FVTPL,

in terms of

market value as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Stock name Stock code
kR ReRH

WLS Holding Limited ERARERLT 8021
SEEC Media Group Ltd ~ HIAEEEEERARA 205
China Investment and hERRESE

Finance Group Ltd BRAR 1226
Milan Station Holdings Ltd KB AKERA 1150
Wealth Glory Holdings Ltd ~ EEERERAF 8269
Asia Grocery Distribution T HEEERAT

Limited 8413
China Environmental HERRERRE

Energy Investment Ltd~ BRA] 936
Sub-total It
Other 19 listed equity Ef19B FRRA

securities (Woze 2) BH(HH2)
Total st

No. of
shares

R##E

302,640,000
14,720,000

16,597,760
32,850,000
35,620,000

8,020,000

59,224,000

Proportion
to the total
issued share
capital for
the stocks

RS
BEGES
BYLH

211%
2.00%

4.02%
3.73%
4.00%

0.69%

4.57%
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3!
(K 000)
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11,198
5,888

17,759
6,504
5343

834

2,014

49,540

28,720

78,270

Proportion
to the total
assets of
the Group

5
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il

4.24%
2.23%

6.73%
2.46%
2.02%
0.32%
0.76%
19.90%

6.67%

26.57%

Unrealised
fair value
(loss)/gain
on the
investments
REn

iy &
AVE
(F#) /
1§
(HK$000)
(Ti#7)

(9,684)
(3,974)

9,064

(564)

(2,499)

(948)

(8,600)

2,007

(6,593)

BATVETFAER

Dividends
received

BURE

S B R

Investment
strategy

RERH

Passive 518
Passive &

Passive 518
Passive &
Passive &

Passive 1k

Passive 518
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Note:
1. Total assets as at 31 December 2023: HK$264,025,000.
2. As at 31 December 2023, other listed equity securities

comprised 21 listed equity securities and none of them
was more than 3.0% of the total assets of the Group.
The companies of other listed equity securities are listed
in Hong Kong in which they are principally engaged
in steel business, the provision of financial services,
movie & entertainment business, electronic technology,
distribution, properties & construction and retail.

WLS Holdings Limited is a company listed in Hong Kong
in which it and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of scaffolding and fitting out services,
and other services for construction and buildings work,
money lending business, securities brokerage and margin
financing and securities investment business and assets
management business.

SEEC Media Group Limited is a company listed in Hong
Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are engaged in the
provision of advertising agency services, distribution of
books and magazines, securities brokerage business,
money lending business and e-commerce business in the
People’s Republic of China and in Hong Kong.

China Investment and Finance Group Limited is a
company listed in Hong Kong in which it and its
subsidiaries are engaged in securities trading and
investment holding.

Milan Station Holdings Limited is a company listed on
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in which it and its
subsidiaries principally engaged in retailing of handbags,
fashion accessories, embellishments and spa and wellness
products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W RS

Wealth Glory Holdings Limited is a company listed
in Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading of natural resources
and commodities; development and promotion of
brands, design, manufacture and sale of trendy fashion
merchandises and other consumer products; investment
in securities; and money lending business.

Asia Grocery Distribution Limited is a company listed in
Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the food and beverage grocery distribution
business under the authentic and original “Hung Fat Ho"
brand in Hong Kong.

China Environmental Energy Investment Limited is
a company listed in Hong Kong in which it and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, original
equipment manufacturing, marketing of jewelry business
and money lending business.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 11 employees
(31 December 2022: 18), including the executive
Directors. The gender ratio of the Group's workforce
(including senior management) was approximately 82%
male to approximately 18% female. The Group shall
continue to take into account diversity perspectives
including gender diversity in its hiring of employees from
time to time.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive Directors and employees as
an incentive to their contribution to the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil).
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi

Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew (appointed on 6 July 2023)

Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry (resigned on 25 September 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. WONG Sin Fai, Cynthia

AUDITORS

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS
Hong Kong:
C&T Legal LLP

Bermuda:
Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
HSBC

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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Corporate Information
NEAEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 2305, 23/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.suncorptech.com.hk

STOCK CODE
1063
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Yuqi (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 32, is an executive
Director. Mr. Zhu is currently assistant to general manager
of a company located in Shenzhen, the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC").

Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew (“Mr. Tong”), aged 66,
is an executive Director. He graduated from The London
School of Economics and Political Science in 1979. Mr.
Tong was a former committee member of the Asset
Management Association of China and is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Securities Association.
Mr. Tong has extensive experience in securities, fund
operations and asset management. During the past 40
years, he was employed as key positions in multiple large
international banks and fund management companies,
including but not limited to, Hong Kong and Japan
branches of Citibank, Hong Kong and Australia branches
of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., Japan branch of JP
Morgan, Standard Chartered Bank, BNP Paribas Asset
Management and UBP Asset Management Asia Ltd.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. MA Kin Ling (“Mr. Ma"), aged 41, is an
independent non-executive Director. He obtained a
Bachelor degree of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accountancy and Law from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wisdom Wealth
Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (formerly
known as Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding
Group Limited) (HK Stock Code: 007) and Wenye Group
Holdings Limited (HK Stock Code: 1802) respectively. He
is also a chief financial officer and company secretary of
China Zenith Chemical Group Limited (formerly known as
Xinyang Maojian Group Limited) (HK Stock Code: 362).
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

EERFTETHASHE

Mr. MAN Yuan (“Mr. Man”), aged 36, is an independent
non-executive Director. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Marketing from the Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology. Mr. Man was the general manager in an
internet company located in Shenzhen, the PRC during
2013 to May 2015.

Ms. HUANG Zhi (“Ms. Huang”), aged 36, is an
independent non-executive Director. She graduated
from Changsha University majoring in communication
engineering. She has over 10 years of management and
business development experience in communication
and electronics industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
Huang had held senior management position in sizable
company in the People’s Republic of China and she
was mainly responsible for strategic planning, business
development and operational management.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Government Report together with annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal control,
transparency, independence and accountability to all
Shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2023, the Group
had applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the period from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023; and unless otherwise stated, which in
the opinion of the Board, are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can
meet the requirements of the CG Code on an on-going
basis. The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarized as below:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control
of the business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREREH

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)

As at the date of this report, the Company has the
following members on the Board:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
page 15 of this Annual Report. Under the Listing Rules,
every listed issuer is required to have at least three
independent non-executive directors, at least one of
whom must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive Directors has
met the requirement of the Listing Rules and represented
one-third of the total Board members.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to the requirement of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. Regular review will be made
on the Board composition to ensure the Company has a
balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)

Continuous Professional Development
(continued)

Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction which
includes provision of key guidelines, documents and
publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s
structure, businesses, risk management and other
governance practices and meeting with other fellow
Directors so as to help the newly appointed Directors
familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and
ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The
Board will consider on a regular basis whether necessary
changes are needed in respect of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to identify suitably
qualified candidates if there is such a need. In accordance
with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), every newly appointed Director shall hold office
till the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERHRE
NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND EESERRBRESHER
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
During the financial year of 2023 under review, 5 board R-_ZT - =ZF[0BE Qﬁﬁﬁlirlﬁ %
meetings were held. The attendance records of each EERTTHAREZ - RNEEZ
Director at the Board meetings and the annual general =T+ A=T—BLFE: %
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2023 was EENESFeeRRRBERE
as follows: B FE s T
Attendance/
Number of meetings
HER EEXE
Annual
Board general
meetings meeting
Name of Directors EEHE ExggeE RERAFKS
Mr. ZHU Yugi KFEHFELE 4/5 0/1
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry ABELEE (RZTE_=F 2/3 0/1
(resigned on 25 September 2023) N A -+ HBET)
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew FEREE(RZEZ=F 3/3 0/1
(appointed on 6 July 2023) +AXNHEZE)
Mr. MAN Yuan m (B 55 4 5/5 0/1
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRZEEE 5/5 1/1
Ms. HUANG Zhi =R/ME 5/5 0/1
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Corporate Governance Report

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an adhoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings
to be conducted by means of telephones or other
communications equipment and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and
signed by all Directors from time to time when necessary
unless such as are temporarily unable to act through ill-
health or disability.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The company
secretary of the Company (the "Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman of the Board in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are sent in full to
all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
execution and approval. All Board minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the
Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
Chairman or Chief Executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) for
overseeing particular aspect of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with
clearly defined written terms of reference which set out
the scope and authorities of the respective committee.
The terms of reference are available to Shareholders for
inspection on the Company’s website. Copies of minutes
of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which
are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are:

Audit Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
Ms. HUANG Zhi

Remuneration Committee

Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. MA Kin Ling

Nomination Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit
Committee was established in March 2000 with written
terms of reference and is currently consists of three
members, of whom all are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a
review of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring
the objectivity and independence of the auditors,
meeting with the auditors to discuss issues arising from
the final audit and any matters the auditors suggest to
discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
risk management and the internal controls; engaging a
professional consultant as the Group’s internal auditor
to discharge the duties of the Group’s internal control
and risk management; reviewing the annual and interim
report in accordance with the accounting policies and
practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; and serving as a focal
point for communication between other Directors and
the auditors in respect of the duties relating to financial
reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy
when necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the financial year of 2023 under review, 2 Audit
Committee meetings were held and the attendance
record of each committee member at the meetings was
as follows:

EZ8Y (&)
2ZEE (#)

To="FOETREERN &
S RITTMABZEZEZTEZN
BEeXEvembEaknT:

ngagum

o m St

W 1 I\

Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

Name of Audit Committee members ERZEEREHA HER EBRE
Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman) BlEEE (X/E) 2/2
Mr. MAN Yuan m (Bl 5 4 2/2
Ms. HUANG Zhi =R/ 2/2
During the committee meetings held in the financial RZBEZ=-FUHBREFERITZZE
year of 2023, the Audit Committee performed the work ggR L BEREZEEGEREBITZL

summarized below: EBLaan T -

- Reviewing the financial reports and results — ERXRTEFSFIA FHMA

announcement for the following financial period
before submission to the Board for approval:

— for the year ended 31 December 2022

—  for six months ended 30 June 2023

— Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The financial reports and the results announcement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been
made.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of ensuring there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration for
the Directors and reviewing and/or approving matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. No Directors and executives can determine his/
her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference and is currently consists of two members, of
whom both are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman) and Mr. MA Kin Ling.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice when necessary.
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During the financial year of 2023 under review, 2 RZE_=FOEBEVRFEN £
Remuneration Committee meeting were held and the BE@BRTTmMATHEZEEERZR
attendance record of each committee member at the BLEEBEKEZSRLFERENT
meetings was as follows:

Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

Name of Remuneration Committee members HMEEERKEH R HER EXE
Mr. MAN Yuan m Bl 5t 4 2/2
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRRELE 2/2

The Company has adopted a director remuneration policy,
it sets out the general principles which guide the Group
to deal with the remuneration matters. This remuneration
policy aims to provide a fair market level of remuneration
to retain and motivate high quality directors, senior
management of the Group and attract experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the business and
development of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREREH

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 1 April
2012 with the written terms of reference in compliance
with Code Provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. There are two
members in the Nomination Committee comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MA
Kin Ling (Chairman) and Mr. MAN Yuan. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

EEZEE (M)

REZEES
REAZBEER_T——FHA—
ARy HEmMBRELENTA LR
BOA ST RIST AR X B B.3. 1R 124
ZEEMEKEBEMEEILIEN
TEFHRELE (XF) MRE SR
E-REZEGZTIERER/MRE
EZEAEFZTEUNEFTEES
FMEFSFLERRES-

Directors.
During the financial year of 2023 under review, a RZZEZ=FLREVRFEN %
Nomination Committee meeting was held and the BERTT —RIERZEGGEN
attendance record of each committee member at the EZEBgNEZEREFRHENT
meeting was as follows:
Attendance/
Number of
meetings attended
Name of Nomination Committee members REZEEREKSR HER B
Mr. MAN Yuan m Bl 1/1
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRRELE 1/1

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company and also to enhance the quality of performance
of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointment
will be considered against object criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
Directors. Three of the Directors are independent non-
executive Directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). The nomination policy sets
out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate as Director. Such criteria
include but not limited to academic background,
qualifications, relevant experiences in the industry,
character and integrity of the proposed candidate.
Suitable candidate can be nominated by any Director for
the Nomination Committee’s consideration. Nomination
Committee should evaluate the personal profile of the
candidate based on the selection criteria as set out in
the nomination policy and undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each proposed candidate. After
comprehensive assessment, the Nomination Committee
will then make appropriate recommendations to the
Board for approval. All appointments of Directors will
ultimately be based on merit while taking into account
the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis
and discuss any revision that may be required, and
recommends any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well
as the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee considers that an
appropriate balance of diversity is maintained on the
current Board, which comprises members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. The
Nomination Committee has discussed and reviewed the
retirement and re-election of Directors and other relevant
issues.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were
complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45
to 53.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Directors have an acknowledgement that it is
responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board has engaged external
professional party to review the risk management
and internal control systems which were included the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control, to resolve material internal control defects, the
procedure and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information and the purchasing
and payment cycles and procedures of the business. The
Board will review this on an ongoing basis to ensure an
efficient system is in place.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Board is responsible for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Board must ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains effective
risk management and internal control systems to meet
the objectives and safe guard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At
the same time, the Group endeavors to identify risks,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems which
are compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) -
Integrated Framework 2013 principles. They are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures in
order to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy
which sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the
business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and
assessing principal risks within its divisions on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to
manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
activities, attending quarterly meetings with each
division to ensure principal risks are properly
managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The risk management framework, coupled with our
internal controls, ensures the risk associated with our
different business units are effectively controlled in line
with the Group's risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has conducted an annual review
on whether it is necessary to set up an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s relatively simple
corporate and operation structure, as opposed to
diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group engaged an external consultant, for internal
control and risk management to conduct review on
the internal control system and risk management of
the Group during the year. The review covers certain
procedures on the sales of telephone and related
products, and make recommendations for improving and
strengthening the internal control system. No significant
area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance, control and risk management of the Group
has been identified.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were in place
and effective.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of
insider information, the Group has adopted a policy on
disclosure of insider information with the aim to ensure
the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2023, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors,
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited were set out
belows:

Services rendered for the Group

=2 AR 75

Audit services

There was no non-audit service provided by McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited to the Company during
the financial year of 2023.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has established the whistleblowing policy
which allows all employees and independent third
parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors,
to report any possible improprieties, misconducts,
malpractices or irregularities in matters of financial
reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will
handle the reports and complaints with care and will
treat the whistle-blower's concerns fairly and properly.
The Audit Committee has the overall responsibility for
the whistleblowing policy but has delegated day-to-
day responsibility for overseeing and implementing it to
a designated officer. Any person who is found to have
victimized or retaliated against those who have raised
concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary
sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-
tolerance basis for any form of corruption, including
bribery and extortion, fraud and money laundering, and
promise to operate our business in an honest, ethical
and creditable manner. The policies are revised in due
course and all Directors and employees are reminded
with its requirement from time to time. In particular, the
Group has established a code of conduct and stipulated
in the compliance manual of the Company. Additionally,
the Group has implemented an effective internal manual
on inside information or price sensitive information and
has provided separate channels for the reporting of any
suspected business irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for more details.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG Sin Fai Cynthia (“Ms. Wong") was the
Company Secretary. She is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the board procedures are followed and that the
Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments. She reports to the Board
directly.

Up to the date of this report, Ms. Wong has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
She has been contacting with the Board directly in
respect of company secretarial matters.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year
of 2023.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
Shareholders and encourage their participation in such
meetings.

At least twenty (21) clear days’ notice for annual general
meeting and at least ten (14) clear days’ notice for all
other general meetings are given to Shareholders before
the meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings and any questions from
Shareholders regarding the voting by way of poll will be
answered. Poll results will be posted on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the date of
the conclusion of the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains
website at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive
information and updates on the Company's business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted. The Company has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholder’s
communication policy during the year and concluded that
it is effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of
dividends in January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Dividend Policy aims at enhancing transparency of
the Company and facilitating the members and investors
to make informed investment decisions relating to the
Company.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board may take into
account of, among other matters, the following factors
when considering the declaration of interim dividend and
proposing the payment of final dividend for the approval
of Shareholders:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial
performance;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and futures
expansion plans;

(iii) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group;
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
(iv) the Group's liquidity position;

(v) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group;

(vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there is no
significant change in the Company's memorandum of
association.

In view of the changes to Appendix A to the Listing
Rules, the Bye-laws were amended, and the adoption
of the amended and restated bye-laws of the Company
was approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2023. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 19 May 2023 and 23 June 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 19 May 2023. The new
Bye-laws are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s
interest and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put
forward at shareholders’” meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the SEHK website and the Company's
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Special general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company or
by such Shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to
Article 58 of the Bye-Laws. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company or the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Bye-Laws for convening a
special general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals at general meeting of the Company by sending
the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

28 March 2024
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is
also engaged in treasury functions. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the processing and trading of
used computer-related components such as integrated
circuit chips, hard-disk and motherboards from developed
countries to developing countries. During the year of
review, the Group also engaged in providing money
lending business; securities brokerage and underwriting
business; and sales of clothes and beauty products
business.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 54
to 55 of this report. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2023, the Group had a decrease
of approximately 48% in revenue as compared to the
corresponding figure for 2022. Information relating
to the financial performance and fair review of the
Group business is set out in the section of “Director’s
Statement” and the section of “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

AR EEeENRERHEZ-Z
=+ - A=+—HIEFEZF
WM E RIS IETRE -

AREl ) —EREEKR QG IR
EEBRE-EMNBRARIZEIEER

ﬁ%%?ﬁé%ﬁgﬁ}(E%tI%E‘] -F
EAEAT (BMEXERLH
ERMEIER)TEEETERT
X-ROBEFE AEBETRHEKE
X B5EEkBEHEES AR
KEXTEMBERR-

XBERDE

AEEHE-_ZT-_=F+=A4
_Jr—EJtEJ*Z%i*@FEALW&i
FEAESSE e Em EMEE
WaKk BEFTEERBE-_T ==
F+-_A=Zt+—HIEFERMRS

£ JE)

RZB-Z=ZFE AEBZRFR
ZEFHEEHT R L8 o
EHRASBEMERE R EEBE
RNEBRZER DHERAFHRE
gREIRIEEEF W RD T

EEe

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &5 37



Directors’ Report
EEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.
571 of the laws of Hong Kong for, among other things,
the disclosure of information and corporate governance,
and the Group has adopted the Model Code (the “Model
Code"”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

A discussion on the Group's prospects is provided in
the Director’s Statement on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report. Description of principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group is facing is provided in the corporate
governance report on pages 17 to 36 of this annual
report while the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group,
relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental
policies are contained in the corporate governance report
and environmental, social and governance report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past financial years is set out on page 172
of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 71% of the revenue of
the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 29% of the revenue of the Group while
the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 85% of the purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 67% of
the purchases of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate
of a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's
largest customer or the largest supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

There was no addition on property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2023. Details of
movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2), 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew, Mr.
MAN Yuan and Mr. MA Kin Ling will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Director is the period
from the date of last re-election or last appointment
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Bye laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

40 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #ifeRi 4R A A

EE (#)

BARAB 2 ARIHAIFE86(2) 87(1)
k872) 1 EEMRLAE - WMELAE
MEREEEBREBRITZRE
BFRELtHESR MEFEE
1& 0 FR B B S S AT o

REFZEHA - RBEESEX
tREZEEHEF BEEREAR
AlZ ARARwmESESL-

EECRBEYN

BRAKRITZERAFRE LB
BETZES BMEBEEAKREIY
R—FRANEME CXEMERIN)
AIRAI R IE 2 IRFF A -

EERFTETHRABZRMAE
=
RZFEZ_=F+ZA=+—8"#%
BARNAESEHETETHRABAER
rElREMREEE (EXREBE
BIESTVEFZH L BEED ([&3F
REEW®H ) FEXVIH) A GL A8
IR EREER HEEEMNAR
BN IRE B S R B E R B 35216 A
FEzEZaMzEmdoks iR
BAZEESTAIM B 1T@ A AR 7] &
RFFZERIRE °



SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at annual general
meeting, under which the Directors may, at their discretion,
grant share options to eligible persons including Directors,
employees and consultants to subscribe for share of the
Company.

On 23 December 2021, a new share option scheme
(the "2021 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
the 2012 Share Option Scheme was terminated by the
Shareholders at special general meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 45,600,000
options were exercised with the exercise price of
HK$0.078 and 22,863,000 options were lapsed under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. The weighted average
closing price of the shares immediately before the dates
on which the options were exercised was HK$0.345. As
at 31 December 2023, there were no options outstanding
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Since the date of adoption of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and up to 31 December 2023, no share option
was granted, exercised, outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors were not aware
of any persons or entities (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who/which had or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares, which were required
to be recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Worldwide Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, provided the cash advance
to its director for facilitating the purchase of goods from
suppliers. The director was regarded as a connected
person of the Company. As at 31 December 2023,
Worldwide Technology Limited had an amount due from
its director up to approximately HK$3,517,000.

Details of the connected transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 November 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2023. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if: (a) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (b) the realisable value of the Company's assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the 2021 Share Option
Scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible
employees of the Company, details of which are set out
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

There were no significant events of the Group after the
year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited have indicated
their willingness to accept re-appointment as the auditors
of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment
of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the ensuing year will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
54 to 171, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS HRETTEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our BREFEFEABRERMOEEH
professional judgement, were of most significance in W BRMRBEAEEETBRE
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of WENRAEENEH - ELEFIH
the current period. These matters were addressed in TEBRMEABREBEEBmRER

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial HEERNETEEN -ZMTE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion HettEzBRREHEREER -EF5H

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on AR BB EFEA:
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade 1. BYWESERFEREEER(IA

receivables. HEEEE| ) BiE-
2. Allowance for ECL of loan receivables. 2. BWERZEREEBERE-
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEETEE BN BETNMEERREETSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables

BURE G R BRI EEERER

Refer to notes 6(c) and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HEEE M IERERMTE6(C) F23 -

The Group had trade receivables of approximately Our procedures in relation to management’s
HK$17,068,000, net of allowance for ECL of allowance for ECL assessment of the trade

approximately HK$1,187,000. receivables included:
SEEERARWE HENL17,068,0008 T HMEBEEEHRNESRRBHEEEHEE
MR FEEE BB BB E 1,187,000/ 7T ° RIS ORI

e  Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the Group’s credit policies;
e TEEFE ESEMNEEBRK:

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables to the
underlying financial records and post
year-end settlements to bank receipts;

s HMEREBEMMBEILHFANERE SRR
RiRBERARFEBRNBITERERE:

46 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED iRl 4R 2 A



Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (continued)

BKEZRAFBREEBRZEE (&)

Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of provision for allowance
for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management also
considered forward-looking information that
may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the
allowance for ECL.
ERERBIRAZFNGEEMRN BRE SR
RO BTEECE BREAENRR BH
RREAERERERSELEBBE SO
BRHMWEZFENERWE ZRRA AT E M
MEtiRTA i EEBEEEN T 2 L ETTE ST
H-BERENERBARTETRFEERERS
EREENHATE M E R A TEREE BB &
e

We focus on this area due to the allowance for
ECL of trade receivables under the ECL model
involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.
BMEITLEE D BHREREEBEEXTH
BREZSERBEHEEEEREIRFERAEX
IR E e R A At e

Inquiring of management for the status of
each of the material trade receivables past due
as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding on-going business
relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers;
RBEARFHERACBHEKE SRR
RREGHXFEEZEETRENEE (7
WIRBE DRk T MERPEEBRE
REZFNBATRGEEBELHEARERTP
B E M ERER) FEAEERE

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the ECL; and

HETEREEEEREERT AE MR
SRR BRI A AR B e Bt
TEAETRAGEERMAZRR B
BERBIELEER R

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.
EZNTEM EXEEERRNGS MR
RPPTIEREE
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Key audit matter

BRRETER

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables

BUREF R EEERERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SRR B B |R M E6(c) K25 -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's loan
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$115,464,000, net of allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$39,729,000.
RZFEZ=F+=—A=+—H0 EBE£ENE
WE A A115,464,0008 70 K TBEHEES
B 4939,729,000/%8 7T

The allowance for ECL of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at
the end of the reporting period of ECL under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments ECL models.
AREWERERGEEBEREREEEERE
EEMBHRESENESR - e ITAEHREE
BEEX RBERREEHEEER 2 &E
(R
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Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment on provision for allowance for ECL of
loan receivables included:
BHEHEERRARBERERNTEREEEE
BEETHENREFBE:

e  Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the Group’s credit policies;

o TEEHLE BERENEERXR:

e Selecting samples to assess the reasonableness
of management judgement on whether
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether credit
impairment has occurred;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables (continued)

BUREHZEBREEERZE (&)

The measurement of ECL requires the
application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions
used in the ECL models (for exposures
assessed individually or collectively), such as
the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.

B EEBENEARAEARHEBERAER
EHERE EBRAMNEEEREER LY
kg ARTEHEEEEEXPEHANRE (3
BERS AR EORARTE) - HlnFEHRKER
EnERAEEABLCEREZ-

We focus on this area due to the significant
amount of the loan receivables and the
significant estimates and judgement involved
in determining the ECL assessment on the loan
receivables.

BRI T EDERERERNERESR
REFTRRERNEHEEBETEIREXR
ERPE -

Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s
ECL models by examining the model
input used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of
the default data from external international
credit rating agency, evaluating whether
the default data are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions
used in each of the economic scenarios
and their probability weightings and
assessing whether there was an indication
of management bias when recognising loss
allowances, assessing appropriateness of the
categorisation of debtors, assessing relevance
of macroeconomic variables with the forward-
looking rate and how the change of these
variables affect ECL,;

il EEERHEEEBREXSEMNS
ARBEEREREFEBABAMERAZE
N A B (B BIE SN BB BR 15 A AT A i
BRENBZOHENERYE) FERER
BRISERALAELEN (BEGEKE
BRAMERBNLHEZEE MERRARLHEBFE
E)KEERABENEE UAFEEERRE
RERABRBEREAFARR THER
ADEREEN FEEEREE S HATHE
MAENEBUEARZEEENZ LA
ErEHEEBE:

Reviewing settlements after the financial year
end relating to the loan receivables as at
31 December 2023; and
REBFEEREEHR_ZT_=Z=F+A
= +t—HERKREFRBBZEERBL: &

Assessing the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group’s credit risk exposure.

AfEH EREEERRRESMBRERT
PTYEHEE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
("other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07606
24/F., Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ElEEkEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

Revenue
Costs of sales

Gross profit

Other gains or losses, net

Distribution and selling expenses

Operating expenses

Reversal of provision/(provision)
for expected credit losses
("ECL") on trade, other and
loan receivables, net

Fair value (losses)/gains
on financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss (“"FVTPL")
— Unrealised
— Realised

Profit/(loss) from operation
Share of result of an associate
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations

Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Note
HiaF

Wy 5 8
& AR

EF

Ho Ui 51 o BT 1R R BB 9

78 M SHE R XX

REFX

FEWE 5 RR - Bt R
A K M B R 2 TR
EEEE ([RYEE
BiE ) BEEE
(Btm) #H

BN FER A
(MERFEFARRE])
ZEBMEBEZRNVE
(B18) e
—RER

—D#BR

BERR, (F58)
JERBRE N R 2 ¥4
B 78 A AR 11

BRBLARF (EE)
CIRER A2 12

AEERF (BE) 13

Hit 2 E W=
AJBER AL EFT 7 IRE
Be ZHEA -
BEBINEKZ
PEE 54 2= 2R

FEEHAN (BER) R
EHBEARE
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
66,288 128,035
(51,093) (112,036)
15,195 15,999
29,760 609
(3,165) (3,121)
(12,958) (13,196)
18,313 (40,603)
(6,593) (21,519)
(220) 4,823
40,332 (57,008)
31 (54)
(179) (292)
40,184 (57,354)
(119) -
40,065 (57,354)
= @)
40,065 (57,355)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEEkEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income

for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners
of the Company (HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted

TH AL
FEERRN (BE):
ZNNCIE RN
TR B

THALEIEEAFE
wmA (BE)R
EHBSEARE:
ZNNCIE RN
TR B

ARREBAERS
BRER (BHE)
(7&4)

—H R

—

Note
HiaF

17

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
40,070 (56,992)

(5) (362)

40,065 (57,354)
40,070 (56,993)

(5) (362)

40,065 (57,355)
2.60 (3.74)

N/A R EH N/A “iE B
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GeaMBRAR

At 31 December 2023 HW=—Z=—=F+=-HA=+—H

Note
Bt it
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B K& E 18
Right-of-use assets REEE 19
Investment in an associate R—EEE AR ZIRE 20
Deposits Ze 21
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 37
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 58 22
Trade and other receivables FEWE ZER K
H A & YR IE 23
Amount due from JEU — 2B H L4 FRIB
a securities broker 24
Loan receivables JE W E K 25
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRRZ
TREE 26
Tax recoverable Al Y (Bl 75118
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTAH R 27
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables ENE SRR K
H th & 1~ ;R 28
Lease liabilities HEAE 29
Bank loan RITER 30
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current REERRBEE
liabilities
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 29
Net assets EEFH
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
= 169

110 79

205 205

23 23

338 476
4,260 4,758
33,933 68,100
3,394 -
115,464 101,153
78,270 74,974
- 123
28,366 32,590
263,687 281,698
18,598 74,726
752 1,310
1,401 2,177
20,751 78,213
242,936 203,485
243,274 203,961
- 752
243,274 203,209




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BeaMBRAR

At 31 December 2023 H=—Z=—=F+=-A=+—8H

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
H i FTEx FHET
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable — ZNA R #E B A AL IR &
to owners of the Company 1
Share capital Ji% < 32 9,231 9,231
Reserves {1 234,498 194,428
243,729 203,659
Non-controlling interest FEIE IR A 2 (455) (450)
Total equity Mg 243,274 203,209
The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 171 FOARNTNAZHBREVBHRERERZ

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of THF=ZA=-T/\BEESESHt
Directors on 28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf ERFETE WAHTIESREK

by: 5=

ZHU Yuqi Tong Hei Ming Andrew
KFEH =H

Director Director

EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RRERmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#ZE—T-_=F+-A=+—-ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAREARE
Other
capital Share Non-
Share Share reserve Contributed Translation options  Accumulated controlling
Capital premium £t surplus reserve reserve losses Subtotal interest Total
e RHEE oS- EON:L] RERE BRERRE 23t EE N FERER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T L T Tign T Tk L Titn Tk Tt
(note 35()f)) ~ (note 35(b))  (note 35(bii)  (note 33(b)iv)  (note 35(b))
(massel) (W) (HEsw)  (FE3sb) 50)))
A1 January 2022 RZ2zz%-f-8 8958 125,151 14,945 41253 (140) 5078 (338,149 257,09 (88) 257,008
Loss and total comprehensive income  AFEBERZENELEE
for the year - - - (1) - (56,992) (56,993) (362) (57,355)
Issue of shares upon exercise of
share option (note 32) VE] 4,759 - - - (1,476) - 3,556 - 3,556
Share options lapsed - - - - - (783) 783 - - -
At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 9231 129910 14,945 41253 (141) 2819 (394358) 203,659 (@s0) 203,209
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ AEE AR 2ENHES
for the year - - - - - 40,070 40,070 (5 40,065
Share options lapsed BREXH - - - - - (2,819 2819 - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=f+-A=1+-H 9231 129,910 14,945 441,253 (141) - (351,469) 243,729 (455) 243274
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE=—Z-=F+=-A=+—-HLFE

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hi st FERT FET
Operating activities Rk
Profit/(loss) before tax BRATRF, (BE) 40,184 (57,354)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZNE 113 226
Fair value losses/(gains) on BRATFESAERZ
financial assets at FVTPL: THMEELNTE
BB/ (k) -
- Unrealised ) 6,593 21,519
— Realised -B2#38 220 (4,823)
Finance costs B S B AR 179 292
Bank interest income RITHFEWA (14) (1
Share of result of associate BN R 2 ¥E (31) 54
Written back of other payables H & < BRI 8 (111) -
Gain on termination of lease RIFFE W (2) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A B (29,253) -
Provision/(reversal of provision) BHEEEEEE
for ECL on: (BEEEEE) -
— trade receivables —RWE FERER 282 292
— loan receivables — W E % (17,583) 38,140
— other receivables — H ftb fE W 3108 (1,012) 2,171
Operating (loss)/profit before REt & = BEREHAIZ
working capital changes e FSTE /i 7l (435) 516
Decrease/(increase) in inventories T/\ﬁ >/ (380) 498 (4,758)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JE W B 5 BR 3N E At fE Uk
other receivables HIERD, ($80) 34,897 (8,722)
Decrease/(increase) in e E TR, ()
loan receivables 3,272 (20,280)
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances #R{T#5% (&) /R
- Segregated accounts —BNERP (1,103) 1,481
Increase in amount due JRE LK 8 55 45 42 FRIB SR N
from a securities broker (3,394) -
Increase in financial assets BATEFAERZ
at FVTPL ERVEE M (10,109) (4,386)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B SRS &EWEFH
other payables #FECED) /Em (26,696) 9,023
Cash used in operations e RS (3,070) (27,126)
Income tax refunded BERFIBH 4 -
Interest element of lease HEZFEH (72) (137)
Interest paid SENEN S (107) (155)
Net cash used in operating REXBBDAZHRSFRE
activities (3,245) (27,418)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAaHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—=%

Investing activities

Acquisition of associate

Interest received

Net cash outflow from disposal
of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

Repayment of bank loan

Principal elements of lease
payment paid

Net cash (used in)/from
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Effects of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and bank balances
- House accounts
- Cash on hand

—=F+-A=+—HLEFE

Note
Wt

RERK

Yo ig B = A

B UFIE

HEMNBARMGRS

iogusbe & 37(c)

RERHMAREFR

MEXK
RITE B R R 31T
B 10 BT 15 3008 32
EEIBITER 37(a)
EREENRASHH

37(a)

MEXK (FFA) B
A FHE

BeRASSEER
BB E
IEEE ST P8

R—A—BzBRL kAT
FE®A

R+=ZA=+—-BzHE
EREEEER

ReERREeEEEB DN
RERBITER

-BERE 27
-FEESE 27
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
- (133)

14 1
(68) -
(54) (132)

= 3,556
(776) (728)
(1,252) (1,304)
(2,028) 1,524
(5.327) (26,026)
- (1)
26,848 52,875
21,521 26,848
19,713 26,818
1,808 30
21,521 26,848




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

GENERAL

SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and Unit 2305, 23/F, The Center,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, respectively.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in processing and
trading of used computer-related components,
provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services, money lending service and
sales of clothes and beauty product.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS");
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

1.

—REHR

FREFERAR ([RXA7])
ABEREBEBEREQAREZEBERE
AKX RBER AT
RAARzidMPEERFESE
3 40 Bh b 4k 5 Bl & Clarendon
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&2 fF KB R IR 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAFIIRKLIETEEBRH

HKFRSs %5 & 2% A
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) BRI REIEFTE B
B R E %8|

The Group has applied the following new
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (include the Insurance Contracts
October 2020 and
February 2022
amendments to

HKFRS 17)
Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendments to International Tax Reform -
HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies

HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as described in notes 3(c) and (d), the
application of the new amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in this consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHATIREEITEEY
HKFRSs (continued) K EER (&)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not (b) EEME 1 RE M2 H
yet effective R REETTE BB
HEA|
The Group has not early applied any amendments KEBHARERER T
to standards and interpretation that have been EEMERARZ-ZZT ==
issued but are not yet effective for the financial F—A—HRABZHEF
year beginning 1 January 2023. The amendments [ & e E A R 2 & AT
to standards and interpretation include the KEzE ZEERZEF]
following which may be relevant to the Group. AEZEREINRERE

EBEBN NIFE.

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
EASHENZ IR (BFIR) —AENRBIERIHE
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
BEAGHENE IR (BFIR) —MHEZHENERBDERE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
EAMBRESEAE 16T (BFIAR) —ERELNEEAR
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that

"

Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause (“HK Int 5 (Revised)")
BEAREEST (KB MBRENZR - ERXAHHAEREREE
BEROTHERNDE ([BEZEES (KE:])])
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance Arrangements
EAGHENZTRREEMBRELAETR (BFIAR) —
HEERE L
Amendments to HKAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability
EAGENSZNN (BFTA) — Rz BN
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
EAVBREEAZI0RREASITENE28% (BRI R) —
REFRHBERTNREE L XREEREIEE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT ARz RHARZ
B HEAEX

1 January 2024

—“T-WE—-H—H
1 January 2024
—“E-WF&—-H—H
1 January 2024
—“T-WF&—-H—H
1 January 2024

—E-MNFE—-—AF—H

1 January 2024
—“T-WMF¥—-HA—H

1 January 2025
—Z-RF—HR—H
To be determined

by the HKICPA
HESRIAMARES

The directors of the Company anticipate that the KRRESEHER L
application of the above amendments to HKFRSs BEEMBRELER (BFTA)
will not have material impact on the consolidated BAERARRKEEZEE
financial statements in the foreseeable future. MBBRREEERTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

3. RAHFIREMBITRM
| EER (&)
() BB LS HEBUB

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(c) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government
(the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment)
Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”),
which will come into effect from 1st May, 2025
(the "Transition Date”). Once the Amendment
Ordinance takes effect, an employer can no
longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund (“MPF"”) scheme to reduce the
long service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an
employee’s service from the Transition Date (the
abolition of the "offsetting mechanism”). In
addition, the LSP in respect of the service before
the Transition Date will be calculated based
on the employee's monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of
service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that
provides accounting guidance relating to the
offsetting mechanism and the abolition of
the mechanism. In particular, the guidance
indicates that entities may account for the
accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF
contributions that are expected to be used
to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as
deemed contributions by that employee towards
the LSP.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

3. RAHFIREMBITRM
| EER (&)
() BB LS HEBUB

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(c) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

(d)

implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism (continued)

Applying this approach, upon the enactment
of the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it
is no longer permissible to apply the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that
previously allowed such deemed contributions
to be recognised as reduction of service
cost (negative service cost) in the period the
contributions were made. Instead, these deemed
contributions should be attributed to periods
of service in the same manner as the gross LSP
benefit. The Amendment Ordinance has no
material impact on the Group's LSP liability and
staff cost.

Impact on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure
of Accounting Policies” for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements” is amended to replace all
instances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements.
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T SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

3. RAHFIREMBITRM
| EER (&)
(d) EREBETERE15

(d) Impact on application of Amendments

to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 "Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because of
the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are
immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material. If an
entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is
material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments has had
no material impact on the Group’'s financial
positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies
set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

(a) #EERE (&)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and
(ii) the Company's share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders
and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right
is not considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREHBRER (8

INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Associates (continued) (b) BBE QT (&)
Investment in an associate is accounted for in REEE RARIWIRE R
the consolidated financial statements by the HEREE MR AR
equity method and is initially recognised at cost. ) 4 ¥ B T 3R o LA P B
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate ERAIMNABANEERE
in an acquisition are measured at their fair BIRHERWKEB S QT
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the BFF 2 WEEKABHAR
cost of the investment over the Group's share of & B EAE B A R AR
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable EERBERTFE AIE
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill B AEEY R W AR
which is included in the carrying amount of the BHREEBERN ANEEEWN
investment. Any excess of the Group's share AEREERBERTF
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets BEBEAKNBRANEZER
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is IRAEBEEER -

recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an REBNEREFENE
objective evidence that the interest in an ERAIZERAIEREZ
associate may be impaired. When any objective EEEE EFEEMNEE
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of BEEAREBEEBSGHE
the investment (including goodwill) is tested Al E36REHRE (BREY
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Bz HFEASBIERE
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable —BEETRERR &
amount (higher of value in use and fair value AiGE AT E S5 (LAE A
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. BEHEARNFEERDEKN
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated ZEEREAE)EERE®
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part BEITH B o (211 2 R
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any EBBYEDEEE N Z
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised KREFERESB s —#o2
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent TRHEE(BREEE) B
that the recoverable amount of the investment BEB G ER FE365% #
subsequently increases. R BAEE B 2 £ [ #E
NZIREHBMREMZA
WEEBERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Associates (continued) (b) &N T (8E)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill)
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EXETHERESR (8
INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation () IMNEB®RE

(1) Functional and presentation currency (1) DIEER £ 3| & ¥
Items included in the financial statements of REEETSERBNY
each of the Group's entities are measured HHEFBEENIER
using the currency of the primary economic AUZEREENTE
environment in which the entity operates (the KREBERFENE®R, ([T
“functional currency”). The consolidated BEEB|)AE-RFEY
financial statements are presented in EKTIAR R FIH I
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the BERZVEEET (I8
Company's functional and presentation )25
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each (i) REE L FEREK
entity’s financial statements X5 R4 e
Transactions in foreign currencies are )RR INEE R
translated into the functional currency on SURARSEARE
initial recognition using the exchange rates EMERINEEE UL
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary HINESTENEBEE R
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are BEHRSMEEHRD
translated at the exchange rates at the end ERETHRE - Az
of each reporting period. Gains and losses BHEEmEEN K&
resulting from this translation policy are EERBEER -

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that RIBINEE L AR GT 2
are measured in terms of historical cost WIEEBEERAER
in a foreign currency are translated using REBHEERRE &
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the ERARARIVRERL
transaction dates. The transaction date is HEEBUEEESARE
the date on which the company initially FOR=R=i

recognises such non-monetary assets or

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

4. EXREFHRER (B

(c) INEE]E (&)

(11)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ili) Translation on consolidation (continued)

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d) ME- -BERKZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of

the term of the lease

or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases (e) HHE

4. EXREFHRER (B

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases (continued) (e) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases, which does not have recent third-
party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.qg.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EXETHERESR (8
INFORMATION (continued)
(e) Leases (continued) (e) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEFERFAHN (8)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably WAEBEEBEEEHE
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased HE®RKRSHBEEESR
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated ENHERE AIGTRAEEE
from commencement date to the end of the useful BB EBRERAEAF
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on HEmiETE -Gl F
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated AEEERAEMGEATER
useful life and the lease term. FHERHEBENREENER
IREITE -
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted ENAREMHERSRE
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair H B mE LR Fo% A
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial R WY TR AFEFE
recognition are considered as additional lease RO FHEREFE R FED
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use FEWARRBEINHENR
assets. Wat AR RAEEEKA -
The lease liability is remeasured when there EAKEENRKREEX —5
is a change in future lease payments arising HA L ERETMEE - HE
from a change in an index or rate, or there AEBEEHRBEREEER
is a change in the Group's estimate of the HEtTEEBENNSEAE
amount expected to be payable under a FAEHTAEAEERS
residual value guarantee, or there is a change EEMWBEKITEREE -
arising from the reassessment of whether the BHEGREEERMES
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise 28 AlgEHNTE2HESR
a purchase, extension or termination option. Bt AN EFFEHE
When the lease liability is remeasured in this BER - CABEENERE
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the B Ve e T - e A
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is EEENERRHEDRES
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount AR Bz AR
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases (continued)

(f)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if
it were not a lease modification, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first in, first out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. The costs
of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

4. EXREFHRER (B

(e) E (&)

(f)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Recognition and derecognition of

(9) Ewu\ n\ JJ:&EWL,\%HQI

financial instruments 3=
Financial assets and financial liabilities are EHMEELACREBEDE
recognised in the consolidated statement of REBRKRBZILASGAIK

financial position when the Group's entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Recognition and derecognition of

() BRARKILEITHMT

(h)

financial instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.

— FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or fair FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EXETHERESR (8
INFORMATION (continued)
(h) Financial assets (continued) (h) TRMEE (&)

Equity investments R E

An investment in equity securities is classified as RERAFHFZREDER
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held BAFETFTABRIE R
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of A FRAKE W IFLAR
the investment the Group makes an election to SHRENFEEAERY T HE
designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) RIEER  AEEEEET
such that subsequent changes in fair value are REREBERNFETAEAM
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such 2HEW AR (AR #E)
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument Rt BEEATFEZZEHRN
basis, but may only be made if the investment HEhrEmWmANER ZF
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s BENTAAEMMEL
perspective. Where such an election is made, the BEEERTARRERE
amount accumulated in other comprehensive MERERZEENBRT
income remains in the fair value reserve EH - fEHZEBEER RE
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. tmeEEBE AR 228
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in TEEREBEAFERE (T
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred ARE)NEETHKRE L
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit E-REER  RATFER
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity H(RARE)ANZRE 2%
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at BEARBAEN BLE5
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as MEmEL - NRAFBHFZ
other income. REZIRBE (BmESHA

BB RFEFABGENR
R EFAEMEEY )
RNEBmE AR SEAMUKA -

(i) Trade and other receivables (i) EREZRINREME
W kIR
A receivable is recognised when the Group has EWEZRRNAEEHEE
an unconditional right to receive consideration. fig% 15 H B X (B | T B R
A right to receive consideration is unconditional o il X B {2 B s 1 #E 7% D
if only the passage of time is required before AJ B 7% B A FE A - Al U ERAX
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue BN BEGMS MR
has been recognised before the Group has an SEAHEERERRKE
unconditional right to receive consideration, the AN EER A K 8l
amount is presented as a contract asset. EHEBEE2INAREHNEE-
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using FE YRR SR A BB R XX
the effective interest method less allowance for REBHEKAREEBBEE
credit losses. HI8R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(0

(k)

0

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

4. EXREFHRER (B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(m) Trade and other payables (MENESRAKREME

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(o) Revenue and other income (continued)

(o) Wz Kk HAbUR A ()

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
wholesale’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the wholesaler as this
represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Commission income from securities dealing and
brokerage services is recognised on trade date
basis when the relevant sale or purchase of
securities transactions is executed.

Commission income from placing and underwriting
service is recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreement or deal mandate when the
relevant significant act has been completed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EXETHERESR (8
INFORMATION (continued)
(p) Employee benefits (p) EERA
(i) Employee leave entitlements (1) 1ESIKEREF

Employee entitlements to annual leave and BERZEFBREARHAMR
long service leave are recognised when they BERNMEEAZHRE
accrue to employees. A provision is made RHER BB ESR
for the estimated liability for annual leave BHEMEHRRIEMEMR
and long service leave as a result of services REAIZEENFEREE
rendered by employees up to the end of the RSB EETEEE
reporting period. i o
Employee entitlements to sick leave and BERZHHRENE
maternity leave are not recognised until the BRI TR -

time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations (i) RIKZAJE
The Group contributes to defined contribution REERMBEEEHA
retirement schemes which are available to all 2B f) TF R FURIKET
employees. Contributions to the schemes by EMEREHER-AEE K
the Group and employees are calculated as a EEHENHRTIIE
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The EEEAH2NETA
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to AEFE -REZRAN
profit or loss represents contributions payable bR B R IKAE A ET 2 & A
by the Group to the funds. DERNEERERESE
Y R o
For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the AERERSG 2 EBK M
employer MPF contributions expected to be TASERERES
offsetted as a deemed employee contribution TR %1957 893(a)
towards the LSP obligation in term of HKAS 19 B TEE S EIE 2 B
paragraph 93(a) and it is measured on a net BB HRARS &M
basis. The estimated amount of future benefit RURBSEBELD
is determined after deducting the negative WIER B HRI IR FEE
service cost arising from the accrued benefits BEEEE o R KtEF B
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions MEr B NEBRASE
that have been vested with employees, which EEmBERNEENRE
are deemed to be contributions from the © R PTE £ 8 RS
relevant employees. BB RBEK A BE

EBBEFRR AR
BEBEENHR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued) (p) EEEH (&)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.

(q) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or, if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EXETHERESR (8

INFORMATION (continued)

(r) Borrowing costs () BERAK
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or FTEREKARE+HMH
loss in the period in which they are incurred. TEHEEER -

(s) Government grants (s) BUKTHEBD
A government grant is recognised when there is EEAERZAEEFE
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply ST KT A Bh B B S R 1 K
with the conditions attaching to it and that the 1 7 15 8 BY B - B BE SR BUR
grant will be received. RN
Government grants relating to income are B A AR B8 &Y BT B
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the T LAEE - 37 4§ A e &
period to match them with the costs they are MO Ae B AR ER
intended to compensate. WERR o
Government grants that become receivable as EEERR X KEEK
compensation for expenses or losses already MASEEREENBE
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate BhRX B FE Y A8 B I & A
financial support to the Group with no future BAEBRKANBT/HE
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in P E K /5 JE U 5k T8 Y HA
the period in which they become receivable. REBmER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(t) Taxation (t) ®iE

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets generally are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)
(t) Taxation (continued) (t) FHIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit
("CQu").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EXETHERESR (8

INFORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of non-financial assets (u) EEMEERME (&)
(continued)
Value in use is the present value of the estimated CREBREE HeESE
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present Bl REKRERED
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates RE -RERREREEFRE
that reflect the time value of money and the BEIKEE BeELEM
risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment (BEfERE)NEERR
is being measured. Z AT Rt E -
Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first REEXEMNRERBEIR
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro Ll EReELEENEE
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU. METH A A EtEE
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount BHCH 1% 7] Y Bl & 58 8N
caused by changes in estimates are credited to et ABRE ERRBIRIE -
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

(v) Impairment of financial assets (v) ERtEERE
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL AEERZRBHKLAGTE
on investments in debt instruments that are MRNEBLAEZKRE B
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables EoERREREXNTE
and loan receivables. The amount of ECL is HEEFERAEBEERE-
updated at each reporting date to reflect FHEEBESERN SR
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of FERHEMN Uk gyL
the respective financial instrument. HMAAKXREEETRIARN

EEARED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)
(v) TREERE (&)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) EMEERE (8)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's
debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

4. EXREFHRER (B

(v) EMEERE (8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) EMEERE (8)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has
an internal rating of “performing”. Performing
means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there are no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)
(v) TREERE (&)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

4. EXREFHRER (B

(v) EREERME (#)
ElEEREZZ#EE

Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or E-EgZESeREE
more events that have a detrimental impact on ZAHETRIRBE @ MEEK
the estimated future cash flows of that financial BEFEEMEER R
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial REECREECEERE-
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data EERBCEBEBEBREIR
about the following events: INTEHZ BRI

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or — BIOTAXRZHEHFBA
the counterparty; BRE N

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) EMEERE (8)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFBHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) EREERME (#)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)
(x) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's
position at the end of the reporting period
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required
to make judgements (other than those involving
estimations) that have a significant impact on the
amounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the
following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

4. EXREFHRER (B

(x) MERREH

ERBEEHEAEERNKS
HI R R 00 B B8 5N & A R
THREHRABSEMH A
SHEEEMBHRERT R -
TEHESHORE R
EMHMRERE KA
RIS RR M RE P 4 FR

ERHEREEME

F& PP s AP 2 AN 52 8] 2 & 5T IR
R EFAFLYMERSE
BERFEZHEH OFRETE
fRON) RERAREEANREH
MK RES2EERABRE
Bz A RER - H R ARRK
RIDERBELER LR SNA
B2 H A A & - BFR 4 R AT RE
B & F AT

mEt REBARREFER W
Hest bt < B EREER
BRI 2 8 BN % B A
R W RE R EARYHE MR
SREARE - BIRME FT B R MR 2R HA
Faﬁﬁﬁiﬁ°

RSt HRERNEZH

REREABERHBIET A2
FREFEELATHEA MK
BRERBBAZATEN
HIET (MERZF 8 M fhat /O H B BR
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FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHE R EFEMET (80
ESTIMATES (continued)
(a) Significant increase in credit risk (a) EEREBFaZEZ N
As explained in note 4(v), ECL are measured as AR BT FE4(v) Fr & - T8 B ME
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage EEERFIBRREERS
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage RI2EAREHREEEBEERD
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its BETE AR FE2REX
credit risk has increased significantly since initial FEIRBREERTBELSE
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what EFBENRETE-EER
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. HEGERBRBE L HERIE
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset BEEMMEEE AR5 -
has significantly increased, the Group takes into BB B mE LR FH I
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable ERATEXEERREE
and supportable forward-looking information. ENEAZR-RIAHEERN
EERBESEEILINE

AREBEEBEAERAE
WEERTEUREEEER -
(b) Principal versus agent (b) TEEFTAEMREA

—IHkAEPREM
ERBE  AEEEE

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group

T B M
030

\r
bl
pu}
n

determines whether the nature of its promise HEAHNHEERIEHIERE
is a performance obligation to provide the EmEd iR (A ERRE
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group EEEANBROEMLE X
as a principal) or to arrange for those goods or ZHR R — 7 (AIAERR
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. RENREZFER LR
the Group as an agent). The Group is a principal BeoMAEENE ma R
if it controls the specified good or services HETEPAIEHEEE
before that good or services is transferred to a me R BIREEAREE
customer. EEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE=—Z-=F+=-A=+—-HLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHE R EEME (&)

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Principal versus agent (continued)

(b) TEEMEAHEMALEA

Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related components and sales of
clothes and beauty product are recognised at
point in time, when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the wholesale's specific location
(delivery).

The Group engages in the trading of used
computer related components. The Group
concluded that the Group acts as the principal
in these transactions. The judgement is based
on indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods within a specified timeframe. The
Group also bears inventory risk and has the
discretion to set prices. When the Group
satisfies the performance obligation, the Group
recognises trading revenue in the gross amount
of consideration as specified in the contracts to
which the Group expects to be entitled.

(%)

“FERMEAANT 2RE
KRB AR EREK KX
RE m o Wt X E an A%
HEEE (MEEmEESH
DRTEWE (X)) )FZ
7 ] Bh T CARE R o

REBRE_FENKAEH
HHEES - AEBERE X
SERZERIPIEARAZ
A ZHABHERAEE
TERERBTTEABRMERE
RESEEANREEDSIE
FR-AEEMEESETRER
MEEBRBEE EAKEE
TEER REERAHAT
RIS E BRI R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of trade receivables and loan
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and
loan receivables based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and loan receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and loan receivables were
approximately HK$17,068,000 (2022: approximately
HK$52,278,000) (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$1,187,000 (2022: HK$905,000))
and HK$115,464,000 (2022: HK$101,153,000) (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$39,729,000 (2022: HK$57,312,000)).

104 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ##hi AR AR

5. EEHE R ETEMAE (&)

HE T HRERRZR 2 EEZRR

A S B R 8 OR 2 % H At (i &
THEEARZEERFENER
BR (B TEMBRFEANEE
FEBENREEERERNEE
MEBEXRER)E X e

JE W E 5 1R 5 L fE W B 7L
/]

AEBEREEENEKRE S K
A EWE SR (E B R
FEWE 5 AR 51 % B WS 5R3R 1
EEBENHEBEZE EN
EHMEEEERANBEER
CHRIIBEREAHNENAEE
MAEEHNEERERRNEH
BB ER 2R E (R
FHAFETHERNERRER)
ZHEHERBEFE - WMAKBE SR
ELREHRIEAEZERBRE
e m - BT BE E £ B AR
BREE-

RZE-_=%+=-"R=+—8"

EWE SEFRRERER ZER
BE#7/517,068,0008 7L (— T~ —
4 1 #952,278,000 7T) (% R
BRB 491,187,000/ 0 (—E = —
£ £ 905,000/ 7T ) ) }2115,464,000
&7t (ZZF = —4 101,153,000 7T
(F0Br R BR B 18 #939,729,0007%5 7T

—F - —4:57312,00087C) ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is
denominated in HK$. The Group has certain
exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in United States dollars (“US$"),
and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the
risk of movements in exchange rates between
US$ and HK$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is performed on the
movements in exchange rates between US$ and
HKS.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed
on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB as the directors of the
Company are of opinion that they are not
material to the Group.

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(b) Price risk

Bt 75 L By B R ()

(b) E1&E R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (note 26).
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower
(2022: 10% higher/lower):

e profit before tax for the year ended 31
December 2023 would increase/decrease
by HK$7,827,000 (2022: loss before tax
decrease/increase by HK$7,497,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair value of
the financial assets at FVTPL; and

e accumulated losses for the year ended 31
December 2023 would decrease/increase by
HK$7,827,000 (2022: decrease/increase by
HK$7,497,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (c) EERB

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and loan receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

For financial assets whose impairment losses
are measured using expected credit loss
model, the Group assesses whether their credit
risk has increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their impairment
allowance and recognise their expected credit
losses, as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition,
the financial asset is included in stage
1.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased
significantly since its initial recognition
but not yet deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is
included in stage 2.

Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is
included in stage 3.
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FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer's past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables arising
from the business of dealing in securities are due
within 2 trading days (2022: 2 trading days) after
the trade date and secured by client's securities.
Trade receivables arising from other business are
due within 30 to 90 days (2022: 30 to 90 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers other
than the cash clients of securities brokerage
business.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. To
measure the ECLs, trade receivables are grouped
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics,
such as industry and recognition of loss
allowance on a timely basis.

108 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ##hi AR AR

JEW E 5 85K

RFEERBRASEBI
ﬁaﬁ.ImLT$¢@%
SITEEPEERRE IR
MEAZKE BF kEE-
rEEBRTE—TEHE
EEZ2E2HEPHETER
SR ZETHEIR
ﬁ\mEW%%ZﬁEH
LB K IR SZ TR

I%F%ﬁz FEEBER
NEF K&K EIRIE

LER - BHEIXHGEBESE
ZEWESERNRX S A
HEMEAXZA(ZE ==
FMERXSHE)AR I
NEPBHERT - HMZE
BKEEZRERWE SERAE
R HHIRET30290R (=
T - —4F:30%90H) RN E
H-REBBRAT KNEH
WARRAEP (BHLELEB
#IR & B P BRAN) Y HUIE 37

an °

AEBEZERN 2 HEY
FEBRZERTERNK
BEERCEREE H)
ERBEBREETTE S
AERHEERE BEKHE
ZEFERAREERR
Rl (BIanfT ) EEETT
7 M K B RE AR B R A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

6. MHERERE (&)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

(c) FERR (&)
JEKE ZRR (E)

The following tables provide information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables, as at 31 December 2023 and

2022:

As at 31 December
2023

Past due

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

Total

As at 31 December
2022

Past due

0 — 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

Total

R-ZZBE-=%
+=A=+—-~H

2 8
0ZE30H
31%£60H
61290H
90H JA E

[=Eb

0%30H
31Z260H
61290H
90H A £

mEt

Expected
loss rate
FHEER
%

%

1.0%
0.0%
1.2%
9.3%

1.5%
1.3%
1.6%
2.6%

TREINBEER_ZE =
FR-_FE-__F+ = A
—t+t—HASE @ EK
E5ERARZ2EERKBKTE

HEEREBZER:

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
REAE  EARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHRE
3,390 (34)
4 —
2,834 (33)
12,027 (1,120)
18,255 (1,187)
27,031 (415)
8,977 (121)
7,530 (119)
9,645 (250)
53,183 (905)
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FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEREE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEWE Z B (&)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss FHEEXDDERERB
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect BRBEEH ZFLLEEE
differences between economic conditions during HABARBRE WERE L
the period over which the historic data has been R HEZ&BERAL B
collected, current conditions and the Group's BIAR O B AR R B ¥ e W E
view of economic conditions over the expected SRR BHFE R 2 &LEMNR
lives of the trade receivables. MZEE 2 ER
Movement in the loss allowance for trade FAEKESERNEIR
receivables during the year is as follows: BEZEHOT
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
THER FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 905 1,792
Written-off 58 - (1,179)
Impairment losses recognised FANERZBIEEE
for the year 282 292
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,187 905
Other receivables H At JE W 5 H
Other receivables relating to accounts that are BMHEABSEREANZE
long overdue with significant amounts, known B -B2AENERSKTDRE
insolvencies or non-response to collection & 75 8 WOE 8 2 H 8 IR
activities, they are assessed individually for TRIE = BLOR (B B 1E 1 R
impairment allowance. The Group recognised e REEFE BN EES
the provision for ECL by assessing the credit AZEER R BHA X
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and RUgE 2]l R ERE
the likelihood of recovery and considering the WATREMR A ERIEEE
prevailing economic conditions. EEERE-
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GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE=—Z-=F+=-A=+—-HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

(o) EERER (&)
A fEW AR ()

TR H A YR IR B8

Movement in the loss allowance for other

receivables during the year is as follows: BEEEHIT -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BRE FIER HE3WE @3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHL FHL
At 1 January 2022 W-B--%-f-H 204 - - 204
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 mEIRREREEIRR 21) - 21 -
Provision for ECL BHEERRER 1,067 - 1,104 2,171
At 31 December 2022 and RZB--F4-f
1 January 2023 =+-Bk
“Z-=F-f-H ,250 - 1,125 2,375
Written off of ECL BHEEEENE - - (1,000) (1,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEA A - - (125) (125)
Reversal of provision for ECL BHEEFRRERD (1,012) - - (1,012)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F
t-ZA=t-H 238 - - 238
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FRE EPIEN FIRE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7r TER TER THr
As at 31 December 2023 R-B==%
t-A=t-AH
Other receivables and deposits, gross ~ E i ENFBERE S 85 4,752 - - 4,752
Less: Loss allowance e BRRE (238) - - (238)
Other receivables and deposits, net ~ EENFBERESFHE 4,514 - - 4,514
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-Z%
t-A=t-H
Other receivables and deposits, gross ~ E BB RE S 85 5,395 - 1,125 6,520
Less: Loss allowance B BiEEE (1,250) - (1,125) (2,375)
Other receivables and deposits, net ~ EtENFBERES TR 4,145 - - 4,145
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)

H At JE WA ()

Other receivables (continued)
Loan receivables JEWE 5

SEEREFEERR A%
EEEEBEZ Kk —MHAR
BEEBTEEERR EEH
EREAMEBREN  AER
BE PR EXER A 17 ) DA &Y [ fE
WE Rz m g R ot
S REBEREREHRE
B % 18 5l /& W & 3R m AT W
O] & &8 - # fR /T A U Bl &Y
TR EHARERRE-

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount of the loan receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual's loan receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amounts.

R HE SR 2 80 1 SRR K &%
Gz AEEEEER
ITMEZEHEPLREE
FPZiEER R - B 5
Ao RNEBERIREBEREP 2
Bk BELRLKEME

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position, past

experience and other factors. Individual risk limits RANEEPZEEBE X A
are set based on internal or external ratings in Al B R B TR B A QA
accordance with limits set by the directors of EERTEZLRBEMETZ

NEB SN B AR M ETE ~ 15
ERBEZERBRAXEH
ER -BUREREREER
Wik < RRER LT B JE

the Company. The utilisation of credit limits
is regularly monitored. Loan receivables are
repayable in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreements and all loan receivables are

recoverable within 1 year.

In determining the ECL of the Group's loan
receivables, the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based
on general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, value
of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at

the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEEAMERE (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Loan receivables (continued) JEWE L (&)
The Group has concentration of credit risk in AEERETEREFEE
certain individual customers. As at 31 December FEERRBEPHBERL R
2023, the carrying amount of the largest loan T-_=f#+-A=+—8"
receivables were approximately HK$23,104,000 EAEBWERE®EESY
(2022: HK$21,807,000) and was approximately 23,104,000 L (—_ & = —
20% (2022: 22%) of the Group’s total loan 21,807,000 7T ) & A& A
receivables. The Group seeks to minimise its risk SEERERBRE 2 420%
by dealing with counterparties which have good TEZZF22%) oK
credit history. EFARMAFRIFEERSL

ZRPHFETAIENEE
PR E R o

2023
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FHBxT
Loan receivables JEWE R 25.6% 155,193 (39,729)
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIESE X RERE E B EE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET TETT
Loan receivables e U & 36.2% 158,465 (57,312)
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wra AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—=%

—=F+-A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for loan
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2022

Transfer from stage 2 to stage 3
Provision for ECL

Written-off

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3
Transfer from stage 2 to stage 3
Provision/(reversal of provision)
for ECL

At 31 December 2023

—F —
=

\_2Z25-A-H
mENRRERZFIRE
RECEBEREE

g

R_E-_—F+-A=+—-H
“E-=%-A—H
mEIRREREEIKE
mEIRREEE SRR
HEVEEE E Y Rl
BHEEEREE/
(BERE)

S S 2 g Ll
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6. MBEABEE (&)
() EERkE (&)
JEREFL (8)
4 9 IR S R R
2EHmT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE kR E3ER @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
- 19,587 149,425 169,012
- (74) 74 -
6,158 31,641 340 38,139
- - (149,839)  (149,839)
58 51,154 - 57,312
(5,990) 5,990 - -
(169) 169 - -
- (1,136) 1,136 -
1,166 (21,429) 2,680 (17,583)
1,165 34,748 3,816 39,729




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BREKRERE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Loan receivables (continued) JEWEZ (&)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B H2REER B3R Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHx TR FER  FER

As at 31 December RZEBE=Z=

2023 +=A=+-—H
Loan receivables, gross e E B 24,269 127,108 3,816 155,193
Less: Loss allowance B R (1,165) (34,748) (3,816) (39,729)
Loan receivables, net FEWEZ F5 23,104 92,360 = 115,464
As at 31 December R-E=-C

2022 +=A=+-—8
Loan receivables, gross e E B 26,719 131,746 - 158,465
Less: Loss allowance B R (6,158) (51,154) - (57,312)
Loan receivables, net JE U & S OF 5 20,561 80,592 - 101,153
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) RENE & E B2

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or

REBMNBEARTEBHER
BRINTEHABESRE -

DARE (R H #4152 40 3R © %
ﬁ ﬁ1—J-/E;%4HH&§ﬁHE@/)IL

RBERRAEEEITE
TRBEZRGBENRE
Z@*HEIEEE\//AL§<@T§TZZ
CRoEiES #Zﬂgﬁm
&ﬁﬂ?ﬁzq—@ﬁ“ﬂﬁ_u ® E\‘JJ«A
FEHRZBITMNEFE

if floating, based on rates current at the end of Zﬂ SRF BB B kAR
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group SEATRAXNOKRTA
can be required to pay: RGN T -

On demand Total
or less than Between Between  undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2 and5 years cash flow
EER RER
SME 1228 2855 BERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL T T

At 31 December 2023 RZBEZ=F+ZRA=1- El
Trade and other payables — FEFTE 5 EH R EMER K 18,398 - - 18,398
Lease liabilities %EEEE 767 - - 767
Bank loan RITER 1,401 - - 1,401
20,566 - - 20,566

At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZA=+- EI
Trade and other payables ERESERREMEMNK 74,526 - - 74,526
Lease liabilities HEER 1,382 767 - 2,149
Bank loan RITER 2,177 - - 2,177
78,085 767 - 78,852
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(e) A=EP2

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group's loan receivables, lease liabilities and
bank loans bear interests of fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

Except as stated above, the Group does not
have other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate
risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will
not have significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

AEENRERENXME
B EIEB A KRITHE
SAEM NEEZBRRRR
HLFBHFERABRBE A
IR 2w B H X R E
&K

AEEZEKER BER
B RRTE K REEF
it 8 FAEREATE
R L5 o

Br bt E SN AREBREE
HARYBEBEMERGFEE
EREE HRAREER
TRE KD NEH 5 AH

ERIETE-

R M5 MRS IE A8
EHR T eHAEE R
EMBRMREEEATE
BMAEKRZEINREREF X
2 2 ) B E AT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December

Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at FVTPL ERAVFEFAEBRZZ
THEE

Financial assets REIHK ARG E 2
at amortised cost EHEE

Financial liabilities: cWMAasE:

Financial liabilities REEK ARG EZ
at amortised cost TRIBE

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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B RERER (&)

f) A+=A=t+—H=z%
T @R

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THT
78,270 74,974
168,602 189,961
19,799 76,703
(9) 2FE
kR A MBI R AT 251 8

AEEsMEELES R
BEMEEEEER =
TEENE - _F+ =
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations: Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
e Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available.
e Level 3 Fair value measured using significant
valuations:  unobservable inputs

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

7.

QNFREFE

TRENNAEERREHRIK
REMEEEFENEBRTAR
FE BEAXAFERETEMB®R
EREAFI[F A FEFEMR
EZRFE=ZRRBEPETH
BNV EFEMBEENERTD
RSENTHERMABNE
ABENABRERERMEM

cE A EBUE-—LBARE
e FEAFE BEF

BEEXRENGEHA
Hi 2 E RIS AR

ERE-
e FM UEZ_LE\ AR
e BRFE BIRER

BE-—MHREZAE
R ABEBE ALT
EREXRTABRE
AHE- TR B RS

ABIR I Al BUS T

S BIE < WA BUE -
cE=Z UBARTAEBERHA
fBE: BEAERFE
AEENBRRANEFRELY
BRREms ENEIRE H
RE=ZEREHRTER—EE
A EBARE L -
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GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEE (80

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at R+T=-—A=+—HZA¥HE
31 December: &AL EE
Fair value measurements using:
2023 —B-=fF AYEFEEAUTER:
Description ik Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-% E-H E=4 #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$"000
TR TET TET TR
Recurring fair value REMHATHEIE:
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRL
- Listed equity securities - ERAES 78,270 - - 78,270

Fair value measurements using:

2022 et AVEFEERAUTER:
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R E-R E=4 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHL FHL FHT
Recurring fair value BEMATHEGE:
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRZ
CREE
- Listed equity securities - ETRAES 74,974 - - 74,974
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there BHE_TE-_="F+A=+—
were no transfers in the fair value hierarchy between AIFFE F—HEEF-_HHA
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level FEESA 2 FASEMAEE AR
3(2022: Nil). BH TEEAZ=AXBEE=

FeEL (DT —F:\E)-
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REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

8.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service line for the

year is as follows:

Revenue from contracts
with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15:

Disaggregated by major
products or service lines

— Processing and trading of used
computer-related components
— Commission from securities
dealing and brokerage services
— Commission from placing and

underwriting service

— Sales of clothes and beauty

product

Revenue from other sources:
Interest income from money

lending services
Interest and related income
from securities

Total revenue

BT BRELER
FISKEAEER 2
EEEHWE:

REZEMRIREE
25> 1y B3 48

—RENEE-_FEK

A 8 48 14

—-BHFBEENCLRY

EXzAe
~EERBHERBELEZ

Hse
—HERERERE®

H tb Wy 25 SRR
MERBELEZMBBEA

ERELEZNBE N
A

b &

iy #8
Wy 2% BA 48

FAREIZEMARBRE D
BEFa#WamBAMAmT :

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
18,488 46,148
194 355
782 2,104
34,379 68,188
53,843 116,795
12,235 10,973
210 267
12,445 11,240
66,288 128,035
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

8. REVENUE (continued) 8. Wz (#)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wiz BA AR (4&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of REEBRNUNTETEEMSZ LM
goods and services at a point in time in the following BRE-—KERHEESm LR
major product line and geographical regions: T EE B W e
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Timing of revenue recognition: WA
At a point in time RE— B2 53,843 116,795
Geographical market: A TR
People’s Republic of China ("PRC") FZEARKEME ([FEH])

(including Hong Kong) (BERE) 38,798 73,107
India HE 388 705
Indonesia EEemE 12,433 36,921
United States of America ("USA") EFIERAZREH ([ERA]) 1,102 6,033
Others H Aty 1,122 29

53,843 116,795
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GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 9. Httm S E 18 R
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FET
Bank interest income RATH E WA 14 1
Sundry income FIEUWA 378 307
Government grant (note) BN BY (Hf7E) = 304
Exchange difference, net MEH = RFRE 2 (3)
Gain on termination of lease RIFEE WS 2 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B B A B 29,253 -
Written back of other payables 1 35 B Ath & < SRR 11 -
29,760 609
note: The amount mainly represents the receipts from Biat: ZEFRBEDEEZREBRG
Employment Support Scheme provides by the REM R E] KW
Hong Kong government. The conditions of the ZHE-BRFHEBZ HME
government grant were fulfilled during the year RBE_ZT__F+=H

ended 31 December 2022. =T —ALFEER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. » EE R

The executive directors of the Company are identified
as the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

The Group has five operating segments as follows:
(i) Sales of telephones and related components;

(ii) Processing and trading of used computer-related
components;

(iii) Money lending services;

(iv) Provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services; and

(v) Sales of clothes and beauty product.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies. Segment profits or losses do not
include realised and unrealised fair value gains and
losses on financial assets at FVTPL and unallocated
administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense. Segment assets do not include financial
assets at FVTPL and other unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated
corporate liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ—Z-_=%+-A=+—HLEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 &R EH (@)
Information about operating segment profit ERRE D ERFREE
or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBEBZEHR

Provision of

brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones  computer- underwriting  clothes and
and related related services beauty
components  components Money — RHERE- product

BER  -—FEM lending RER HERRR Total
RBAE  BEAk HE  B#RE  XBER h)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThR ThR ThR ThR ThR ThR

For the year ended Hzo®ocE
31 December 2023 TZB=t-HLEEE
Revenue Wi

Segment (loss)/profit A (EE) /&

Fair value losses on financial XA FE ABEZ

assets at FVTPL: SHAELLTE
Bi:
- Unrealised -REH
- Realised -BER
Unallocated expenses APRFX
Unallocated income AABBA
Share of result of associate ~ [EEBEERAZ£6
Finance costs MERE
Profit before tax BRBtATE
Asat 31 December 203 ~ R=B=Z%
t=A=1-H
Seqment assets HHEE
Unallocated assets AOREE

Segment liabilities 7
Unallocated labilities AAEAE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about operating segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2022
Revenue

Segment (loss)/profit

Fair value gains/(losses) on
financial assets at FVTPL:

- Unrealised

- Realised
Unallocated expenses
Share of result of associate
Finance costs

Loss before tax
As at 31 December 2022

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

10. 7 &R E B (@)

BREE D RN HEE
EEREBEZER (#)

Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones  computer- underwriting  clothes and
and related related services beauty
components  components Mongy — R product
B lending RER HERRR Total
HEAr  REal nE  eERE  X%Em fzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TiEL TET TEL TEL TEL
BE-®CCF
tZR=t-BLEE
Wi - 46,148 10,973 2,726 68,188 128,035
28 (58 /A (517) (681)  (31,909) 109 (178 (3317
ROTEHARRZ
LREEZLNTE
s/ (E8):
-REH (21,519)
-BE3 4823
APERX (7,140)
EBEBERA ZE (54)
RERE (29)
BRAESR (57,354)
gt St 3
+=A=t-H
APEE 67 10,076 103,359 29,915 46,644 190,061
AOREE 9,113
282,174
BRI 29322 2,531 7,687 5,873 29,861 75,274
AAEAE 3,691
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ—Z-_=%+-A=+—HLEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Used
Telephones  computer-
and related related
components  components
E¥k  C-FER
B REAk
HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin Tin
Amounts indluded inthe i EAFEZFEEL
measure of 28
segment profit or loss:
Depreciation of right-of-use R EEE &
assets

Fair value losses on BATESABRL
financial assets at VPl £ BEEZATEEE:
- Unrealised -k2%

- Realised -B2%

Provisionfreversal of RBEEER
provision) for ECLon: &8/ (BERE) -

- Loan receivables -EYER
- Trade receivables -EREFE
- Other receivables -EpENHE

Interest expense HERX

Money
lending
i

HK$'000
TEL

10. 7 &R EH (@)
Hith o B E

BE-ZE-=f+=-HA=+-—
HILEFE

Provision of
brokerage,
placing and Sales of
underwriting ~ clothes and
services heauty
RitER product
EER #ERKR  Unallocated Total
BERE  XRER xAR &3t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TiEn Tin
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 0.7 HEH (&)
Other segment information (continued) HibpIpER (1)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hez—_Z- "+ -_A=+—
HIEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones  computer- underwriting  clothes and
and related related Services beauty
components  components Mongy — &L product
BEk  CFEK lending BER  HERER  Unallocated Total

HRAk  6EAR KR BERE  XBEm ol it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HKFOOO  HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL

Amounts included in the ~ i+E7 TEZFEEL

measure of £
seqment profit or loss:
Depreciation of right-of-use EFEEE 7 iTE
assets - 216 - - - - 226

Fair value gains/(losses)on - BATE: A BEZ
financial assets at VTPl £BEEZATFE

b/ (B8):
- Unrealised -F2% - - - - - 21519 21519
- Realised -22% - - - - - (4.823) (4823

Provision/(reversal of REEEER
provision) for ECLon: ~ &fE/ (BERE):

- Loan recelvables -ENER - - 38,140 - - - 38140
- Trade receivables -EXE AR - JE; - 28 21 - 29
- Other receivables -EtENGE 13 98 150 2) 15 97 2171
Interest expense HERR - - - - - 292 292
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers by
location of operations and information about its
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed

below:
PRC =8

(including Hong Kong) (BERB)
India gE
Indonesia EEEmE
USA EH
Others HAb

10. 2 EHE R (&)
ih & & R
AEBEZKEMEE 5 KRB
ARPZWHERIZEENEE
DZIEMBEEZER M
T

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

REMREFZW G RBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAET
51,243 84,347 — 169
388 705 = -
12,433 36,921 - -
1,102 6,033 — -
1,122 29 = -
66,288 128,035 - 169

Note: Non-current assets excluded investment in an
associate, financial instruments and deferred tax

assets.

Bt ERBEET BN —HE
BRAEIZRE -SRTAME
EMREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue from major customers

Revenues from customers of corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Customer A (note 1) BER (Wit1)
Customer B (note 1) BE L (K1)
Customer C (note 2) BER(Wit2)

note 1. Revenue from sales of clothes and beauty product
segment.

note 2: Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related components segment.

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE
Interest on bank loan RITERZFE
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Y

10. 2 EHE R (&)

REFEEF 2N HE

A FEEF E L AR B B U e
10% 2 EFWz=mT

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

14,978 24,360

19,401 43,828

7,665 19,898

0%

i1 RABEREREBERS
7 W3 -

Bfatz: KB —FEMBBAGERE

BB S5 Uk
1. IR A

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FiT

72 137

107 155

179 292
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAF{ 18 — & B F1E 5
BEFERETR

Under-provision in prior years

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries either did not have assessable
profit or had sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset against current year's assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations established in Hong Kong will
be lowered to 8.25%, and profits above that amount
will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 as the Group's PRC subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits during the years.

122.Fi8FHBEX
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FiT

119 -

Bz —_=rk_=T_=
T A=F+—HIFE BEF
BRI ARREEE W HRE AR
H RARBREEEENE QA
WAREELERRD & NHLEEER
A HY 1 T8 B 1B R B A5 B2 R SH R
FEERT G-

HE_Z-_=Fk=-F=_=
+ZA=+—HLFE REF
BRAEH REBXNILHEG
&1 % 52,000,000 T 2 fE
R A 2 MERRGHEE
8.25% ' MiBiBZ & ¥ 2 m M
R E16.5% R i

TEREZE TS _=FK_F
T+ ZA=1T—HLtFE
ERHPEIEFAERER RA
BASEBEFBENEB RGN ME
FEANTEELATMERT G
F o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. 88X (&)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

B3 BB % B 8 RIS BB
TR B AR B2 HE
m

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BREBRDEF, (EE) 40,184 (57,354)
Tax at the domestic income tax RN P15 3 %16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) —E - _F:165%)
AEZHIA 6,631 (9,464)
Tax effect of expenses not M LT EeHR 2
deductible for tax purpose Xz HETE 169 367
Tax effect of income not taxable AR LRI
for tax purpose WAZ G2 (4,834) (796)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERZHIEBEZ
recognised M2 919 25,290
Tax effect of temporary difference RERCERERLZ
not recognised MR e (1,471) (14,497)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BAAERERZ
not previously recognised MIBEE 2 MBTE (1,414) (882)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax regime  FIS R MAH 2 G2 - (9)
Tax concession IR R S - 9)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENRE 119 -
Income tax expense FTE A 119 —
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14.
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wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

1B.AFERRN (EE)

The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after

charging/(crediting) the following:

AEBAFEHEN (BB
KRB (GEA)A T &HERE
B

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R & 680 630
Cost of goods sold and services BRRXLZEEEmR
recognised as an expense AR 75 A 72N 51,093 112,036
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FHAEEEZINE 113 226
Provision/(reversal of provision) for ~ FEE{Z BB & #E
ECL on: (BERE) :
— Trade receivables —EINE ZERX 282 292
— Other receivables — H {th e W 58 (1,012) 2,171
— Loan receivables — W E R (17,583) 38,140
Expenses related to short term lease 2 B € AR R =X 146 60
Gain on termination of lease WIEHEE RS (2) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ek NN (29,253) -
Exchange difference, net R EEFE (2) 3
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14 EERBAMAX
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Employee benefits expense EERAFX
(including directors’ (BIEESEMSE) :
emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ - fE 4L N2 2 5,218 4,845
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIET B
contributions (note) (Htaz) 168 184
5,386 5,029
note: Hiat

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries subject to
a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

RNEBRBEEBSGHEAESTE
GO AMEEAAEREELRHS
HEHHERAEEHE ([RES
Bl AEBEYMREETE ZHR
REHE 5% TE (BHNETE
Bz&Bm & B EHB1,500871T)
MEAEEGFARESHEZES
HR—REBREEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued)
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included zero (2022: zero) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 15. The emoluments of the remaining five
(2022: five) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries, bonus and allowances

Bonus

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

TE4T

REZHT B
LA T 8385

Their emoluments were within
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000

During years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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EARG o EA MR

BIREFE SIS

£ 21,000,000/ 7T

14 EER®FMAX (@)
TEERSHFMAL

AEEBRFANAA &S 3 0
ATBEZER(ZEZ_F:
THRI)ES HHFME M5
2O A-HBTRHB(ZF
TZFRB)ZEHEMEI AT
(Pf3E)

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FETT
2,618 1,993

58 151

76 74
2,752 2,218
2023 2022
No. of No. of
employees employees
EBEAH™ BEA#
5 5

HE_T-_-"FRZZFTZ_F
+-—A=+—HItEE XEH
YERAFNAEEaEHFALX
Nie  EREIMAR AR
SESMNRE  IERABMTR

f&-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15.EEE/RARES
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-_=Z=+t=A
=E+—BLEE

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees 9 EHER  emoluments
g AR HELE ame
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it TER TER TER TER

Executive directors HIEE

Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry FRELE (1) - 313 16 329
Mr. ZHU Yugi RFFEE - 287 8 295
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew EERLE (i) - 120 - 120

Independent non-executive directors BV FHTEE

Ms. HUANG Zhi /M 105 = = 105
Mr. MAN Yuan mELE 120 = = 120
Mr. MA Kin Ling SRERE 180 - - 180

405 720 2 1,149
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15.EEE/RARER (E)

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2-_ZET-_—_F+ = A
=t+—HIFE
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees ek FREF emoluments
g Hto sz h HE LS ane

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
TATL TR TAL TATL

Executive directors HiITEE

Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry ARELE - 180 9 189

Mr. ZHU Yug RFFRE - 180 9 189

Independent non-executive directors BUHAITEE

Ms. HUANG Zhi &R/ME 60 - - 60

Mr. MAN Yuan mELE 120 - - 120

Mr. MA Kin Ling BREkE 180 - - 180

360 360 18 738

Notes: Bt -

(i)  Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry resigned as executive () ABBEXEN-_ZT_=F
director on 25 September 2023. NAZ+EHBEETRTE

%O

(i) Mr. Tong Hei Ming Andrew was appointed as (il BEBREERZT_=F

executive director on 6 July 2023. +tARNBEZERNITE
=

There was no arrangement under which a S s S = S

director or the chief executive waived or FT+_A=+—BHLFE"

agreed to waive any remuneration during the TEEESHESTHRAE

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. No A 3K [R] B AER 1 {A) Fr B

emoluments were paid by the Group to any B % BE o AN & B 3 A R 2R

of the directors or the chief executive of the EFFARAERITHA

Company as an inducement to join or upon BEXfEE EREMAL

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of RN 7R 68 [ B ) 22 B - 3k

office. VERBEEREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 39, no other significant
transaction, arrangement and contract in
relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2023, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2022: Nil).

15. 55/ ER (&)

(b) EERR G ZHHEHN
ZERER
B B RE39RAT R B8 & SN AR
FRYMNAFEIMER
AR A HEAATH B QA
BER I EAEEX
BEBMARRESZERE
EZBEEALIRETER
IEHEREEEAEAZE

KRR RHRELN -
16. R 2

BE_ET_=Ff+-_A=1+—
AEFEYERNSEZIRN
B B R B A SR A SR IR
BREEEANRE(ZE=_Z
Fom|E)o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T_=F+_-A=+—HILLFE

17.8REBR, (B#E)

ARAEBEABESREER
BERF, (BR) DRENLT
BIBEE

17. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/
(loss) per share attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Earnings/(loss) BF, (BR)
Earnings/(loss) for the year attributable AR EFAEARZBF]
to owners of the Company for the (EB) ZARF]
purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per RN
share ar,/ (E8) 40,070 (56,992)
2023 2022
‘000 ‘000
Fr T A%
Number of shares g §E|
Weighted average number of ARstEERER
ordinary shares for the purpose of &%,/ (E#E) z
basic earnings/(loss) per share L 38 A N - 15 &) 1,538,537 1,524,045

No diluted earnings/(loss) per share is presented for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, as
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
2023. Additionally, as the outstanding share options
did not have any dilutive effect and was not included
in the calculation of diluted loss per share for 2022.
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Cost
At 1 January 2022
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2023
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 1 January 2022

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2023
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2023

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RA
W_E-_—_F—H—H
BN ER

W_E::¢+‘HE+—E
—F#—f—H

_7_

HEMNB AR
R-ZE-Z=%+ZB=+—-H
R FEREE

W_E-_—_F—H—H
-

F:%::¢+—HE+*H
“%#—A—H

_7_

HEWB AT
R-ZE-=%+-B=+-H

IREE
R-ZE-=%+ZB=+—-H

R-E-—_F+-A=+—H

or B BB R B R

To=Ft+ZA=+-HLEE

18. W% -MERRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement equipment
HEMX B Total
% KERRE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET
2,314 443 2,757
- M (1)
2,314 447 2,756
- (12) (12)
2,314 430 2,744
2,314 443 2,757
- (1) (1)
2,314 44) 2,756
- (12) (12)
2,314 430 2,744
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

19.RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS 19. EAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2022 W_ZE-_—#—H—H 395
Depreciation e (226)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-_ET-_—_F+_A=+—HK
—E-=9—H—H 169
Depreciation e (113)
Termination of lease LIFHE (56)
At 31 December 2023 R_FE_=F+_A=+—H -

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$752,000 (2022:
HK$2,062,000) are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of HK$Nil (2022: HK$169,000) as
at 31 December 2023. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Depreciation expenses on EREEEZ
right-of-use assets TEMX

Expenses related to short term lease %2 #ifl & AR R &2

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE
(included in finance costs) (FFABF ISR A )
Gain on termination of lease HFAE WS
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RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8"
#49752,0008 L (Z T = —F:
2,062,000 L) WIHEAEHR
HACRAEEESTAL(ZF
— 169,000 T ) EFER -
BRHHEAFEHEEENER
Emoh HEWE L EENEM
LAY - HEEETBIERENRD
R

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
113 226

146 60

72 137

(2) -




19.

20.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 37(b).

For both years, the Group leases an office and
warehouse for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 2 years to 3.6 years
(2022: 2 to 3.6 years), but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted equity investment: FELEMRARIRE :
Share of net asset R EEFE

Name of entity Incorporation

ERER g2 afEX

Blue Pool Ventures Limited Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

ERARARRA BET 1,000% & i E &

IXTHERK

Registered capital

19. EHEEE (#)

FREERREREZHBH
PP EE37(D) °

RREFERN RNEBEAHEXER
HEMRAEREE-HEAHY
R EEHR A2FE36F (ZF
T CF2FE369F) A AR
JEHA Je #% F (B an NP ) -
MERR IR E R EERER I
BEZBR AR R AR - R
/& & 18 A & FFAd S A HRE HA
MEERE  AEBEERBAAONTE
EIWHETE SR ATERITH AR o

200 R—EBEQT ZRE

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
110 79

Percentage of

equity attributable  Principal

to the Group  activities
rEEE

EEEE L TEEH

25%  Investment
(2022: 25%) holding
5% REER
(ZEZZF:25%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

20.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 20 A —EHE QTR ZRE
(continued) (&)
The following table shows, the Group’s share of TR AEBD(HEAER
the amounts of the immaterial associate that are EARZAERBERA 2K
accounted for using the equity method. T8 e
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 31 December: BR+=—A=+—8:
Carrying amount of interest EmEIREE 110 79
Year ended 31 December: BEZ+=-A=+—H
LFE:
Share of gain/(loss) FEIE Rz (B18) 31 (54)
21.DEPOSITS 21.%&&
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deposits with the Stock Exchange B RFTiE®
— Compensation fund —EES 50 50
— Fidelity fund —BRES 50 50
— Stamp duty deposit —HERES 5 5
Contribution of guarantee fund paid Bt &EHRRLE
to Hong Kong Securities Clearing BRAR([BEBEE])
Company Limited (“HKSCC") ERESMHRK 50 50
Admission fee paid to HKSCC ENEEGEELEE 50 50
205 205
22.INVENTORIES 22. 78
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Merchandises EER 4,260 4,758
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 3. EREZRIAREMELR

FIE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K et FET FAET
Trade receivables arising from BEHERHEBEERZ
the ordinary course of AT XBARE
business of dealing in EENEKRES
securities transactions: BR3K
- Cash clients -REeERP (a) 317 8,407
Less: Allowance for ECL B TEHEEE
EEEE - (93)
317 8,314
Trade receivables arising from HihBEEBABIE
other ordinary course EXNENRES
of business, other than ER(BHERS
business of dealing in BB XEBRIN)
securities transactions (b) 17,938 44,776
Less: Allowance for ECL B BHEE
BEBRHE (1,187) (812)
16,751 43,964
Sub-total of trade receivables FEUWE R/ NET 17,068 52,278
Deposits, prepayments and Ze BNRIER
other receivables = e (c) 17,103 18,197
Less: Allowance for ECL B TEHEE
EEE A (238) (2,375)
16,865 15,822
Total trade and other receivables EWE 5 BE R &
H A YRR TR 42 5R 33,933 68,100

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBHmERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BB SRR R H U
(continued) MIE (#)
(a) Trade receivables arising from the () BHXEEXERKEELEZE
business of dealing in securities W E 5 R
The Group seeks to maintain tight control REB NREBESER
over its outstanding trade receivables and has Wz Y E SRR IR
procedures and policies to assess its clients’ ERFEABRABHETR
credit quality and defines credit limits for each NEEBZURAEER
client. All client acceptances and credit limit are FHEERBE -EAZTPH
approved by designated approvers according to —VEEREERESH
the clients’ credit worthiness. EEEHABREEFPH
EEE-
The normal settlement terms of trade receivables RBEHRELERB 2B EE
from clients and clearing house arising from BRAEBERFEENEREP
the ordinary course of business of securities MEBERMESRERNESR
brokerage services are 2 trading days (2022: 2 HEHRRX S A HE M E
trading days) after the trade date. RPB(ZEZZF WA
RH5HH) -
The ageing analysis of trade receivables arising BARDHEBFEB2ATE
from the ordinary course of business of dealing BREEEZEKE SRR
in securities transactions, based on trading date, (M EER)BREXSH
and net of allowance, is as follows: HZ25| 2 RE DT T -
2022 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
0-30 days 0Z30H 3 77
31-60 days 31260H 4 1,602
61-90 days 61290H 5 317
Over 90 days 90H K E 305 6,318
317 8,314
Trade receivables due from cash clients are EREeEFPFHERES
secured by clients’ securities, which are publicly RRAEFHNES (REB
traded equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The AABEBEZ ETRAES)
fair values of the securities as at 31 December EEH -FBHFR_T_=4F
2023 were approximately HK$30,139,000 (2022: +ZHA=+—H®HAFE
were approximately HK$123,389,000). As at 31 #9/430,139,0008 L (=&
December 2023 and 2022, all balances were = T :#9123,389,000/%
secured by sufficient collateral on an individual L) RZE_=FK=_F
basis. T+ ZA=+—H f
BEHEHBORENEERR
REMmIEEM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables arising from the
business of dealing in securities
(continued)

In addition, the Group has a policy for
determining the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables without sufficient collateral
based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collateral and the past
collection history of each client.

In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date the credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date and the fair values of the
collateral held.

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
receivables arising from the business of dealing
in securities are denominated in HKS$.

Trade receivables arising from other
businesses

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days (2022: 30 to 90 days) to its customers. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from
other course of business other than business
of dealing in securities transactions, based on
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H Mk

23.ENESIRFIREMEY

FIH (#)
(a) RHEEBEXBELEZE

(b)

WE 5 R (&)

BN AEEREBRE R
R A e A RT (S RAR
BOREDMTEEERE®N
HE (BREBEEPNIE
B W@ MR WK ER )
EEAREZREMR W
FEUE 5RO B R -

REERKEZERRZA
Yo Bl 1B - AN B E R R W
BORFXEBVBEREESR
BEHEEEREBHILE
EERMMFERARZA
FEZEREE-

AEBREELFESTEB
ZREWE SREANEEE
LABTCETE ©

HbXBEE2BKE
5 B8R

REERTHEEF30E90
B(ZZEZ-—%:30%890H)
ZEEH BREAFARFEE
X% BEHMEBBREE
2 EWE SR (k&
HER)BREBEZEEBHZY 2
BRE DT -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR
2,595 5,798
758 5,160

— 8,023
13,398 24,983
16,751 43,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. EWEZRRREMER

(continued) FIE (#)

(b) Trade receivables arising from other (b) Ht¥BELE 2EWE
businesses (continued) 2R (M)
Before accepting any new customer, the Group REBREMEMAIER
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality HEgrtdHmERPZEE
and defines credit limits by customer. Credit EXVHARAEZERPZE
limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice ERB-HFESNEERER
a year. BMEFWMAT MK
Details of impairment assessment of trade REBEEZE_FT_=FK=F
receivables for the years ended 31 December T —HF+-A=+—81Lt
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 6(c) to the FERKE SEREFNBE
consolidated financial statements. TEFBEERNES TR

= HIEE6(C) ©

The carrying amount of the Group’'s trade AEERBEMERZE
receivables arising from other business are WE SEROEREEMNKE
denominated in US$. JLRHE °

(c) Deposit and other receivables (c) ZERHEMEWFIE
Amount due from a subsidiary’s director of ER—HMBRARICES
approximately HK$3,517,000 (net of allowance 2 FXIE#I3,517,0007 7 (0
of HK$194,000) (2022: HK$3,170,000 (net of Pr¥&E194,0008m) (=%
allowance of HK$1,006,000)) was included in — —%:3,170,000% 7T (0
the deposits and other receivables. The amount B % 151,006,000/8 7T) ) B
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on T AR S N E th E R IE o
demand. EREEREER 28K

AEEREE-
24. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SECURITIES 24. B R LKA

BROKER

Amount due from a securities broker represents ERBARELRBERRR S L

deposits placed with securities broker for the trading MEEMFREZHFLLNTF

of listed investments, which is unsecured, bearing FoHBEEIT120% £0.01%

interest at 0% to 0.01% (2022: nil) per annum and T F T )MFREFGFE

repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed FME WEREREE - WEE

in respect of amounts due from securities brokers of JE W 38 75 #4542 3K TH 493,394,000

approximately HK$3,394,000 (2022: HK$Nil). In the BL(ZE__F BT

opinion of the directors of the Company, an ageing BERROM - ARRIEERAE

analysis does not give additional value in view of the BERAEENEBRME  REe

Group's business nature. AT EEEIME(E
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

25.LOAN RECEIVABLES

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the
remaining contractual maturity date:

0 — 90 days 0&90H
91 - 180 days 91£180H
181 — 365 days 1812365H

TR EEEERREG

Less: Allowance for ECL

The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money
lending business.

The loan receivables are repayable in accordance
with the terms of the loan agreements and all loan
receivables are recoverable within 1 year (2022: 1
year).

The Group’s loan receivables contain clauses which
reserved the right at sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective
of whether the borrowers have complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s loan
receivables are denominated in HK$ and carried at
fixed effective interest rate ranging from 8% to 10%
(2022: 8% to 10%) per annum and with the terms
of 1 year (2022: 1 year).

25. B ER
FEWERHER Y TRRGE
SEEEERTE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
52,521 17,434
37,429 38,512
65,243 102,519
155,193 158,465
(39,729) (57,312)
115,464 101,153

AEBEBzEWERKBRESR
%%0

JERERBERIEBEE R IHZEZIK
HEE BAARKERATR—
FRWE (ZFB-_—F:—F)-

AEBRBERHBRE 2E
R TE B E AR B ) B SR B B 5 X
HRER MR TmfE A Z D
BEETRHENMEBEITREMNER
BfE-

R-ZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H"
NEBHEKEZTABITEE
RZETEBRFEMNENF8% =
10% (ZE - —%F:8%E10% )
HECHBRA—F (T
F:—4F)o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 26 RAFEFTABRZZERM
BE
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, A& Fh 2 AN %
at fair value - Q/NS I 78,270 74,974
The equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held REBLETZBRAZFTIAR
for trading purpose and are measured at FVTPL in SENMBEALREEETE
accordance with HKFRS 9. The investments in listed HEERFIRIZAFEF AR
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity AT E  RASEIREKREBEER
for return through dividend income and fair value BEWARRAFERZERSD
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. WO EMBRAFBLHRE -ZEXR
The fair values of listed securities are based on BEUWEEFIHAKES X L
current bid prices. MEFNATFEIERBA®
BABERE-
27.CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. RE RWITHEER
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Bank balances RITHER
- Segregated accounts for dealing —EEERFEEZ
with clients’ money (note) BARP (K7:F) 6,845 5,742
— House accounts —BBEEP 19,713 26,818
Cash on hand FEBES 1,808 30
28,366 32,590
Note: The Group maintains segregated accounts with Brat: RNEBRRA ¢ REER
authorised financial institution to hold client money BYRP URBEEKA
in the ordinary course of business. BhHEEFE®-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE=—Z-=F+=-A=+—-HLFE

27.CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Represented by: =K
— Client accounts (note)
— House accounts

—BEERF

note:

As at 31 December 2023, include in bank balance -
client accounts of approximately HK$6,845,000 (2022:
HK$5,742,000) was money deposited by clients in the
course of business of dealing in securities. The Group has
recognised the corresponding amount in trade payables
(note 28). The Group currently does not have a legally
enforceable right to offset these payables with deposit
placed and use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR
uss$ ET
HK$ /%TE

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

—EPFERFP (&)

27. R RBITHER (#)

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
6,845 5,742
21,521 26,848
28,366 32,590

Bet

NRZE-_=F+-_A=+—8 &t
ANIRTT#E 8% — B PR P 476,845,000
BT (ZZF = — 4 :45,742,000/5
TL)REFPRESRX XK BEF
T)\Eﬁiéf% AEEERENES

AR AEEFIE (FE28) o K
ﬁliﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ/z&T%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁé%u'
AEBRT AR EKEZZERNTER
REFEREPHRERBITHEER-

R|EHR NEBZ2HE MR
SR T EEEHE

171

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TET
52 51
2,512 4,369
25,802 28,170
28,366 32,590

AR A BINE TH /BB T F
B 5N E & I 5k e B TE - B BB Ko
NEEEMRE AWM ~NEEE
SR E RN B INE X5
MIRTHARB LB SEME
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. ENEZRIFAREMEN

FIE

2023 2022
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
lligz3 TR FHET
Trade payables arising from the HREHFRXZEEEKZ
ordinary course of business of HEEFBBREPES
dealing in securities transactions: HYEfT & SR :
— Cash clients —-ReRP (a) 6,378 5,397
Trade payables from purchase of R E b B & %%
goods arising from other (BHFERXHEEEK
ordinary course of business, BroN) BIZEHFIEE
other than business of BmES RN
dealing in securities transactions & SR (b) 596 55,701
Other payables and H A & T RIE K
accrued expenses e X 11,424 13,428
Provision for reinstatement cost 18 J& AR AN 5 45 200 200
18,598 74,726

(a) Trade payables arising from the business
of dealing in securities

The trade payables balances arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are normally settled in two
trading days after the trade date except for
the money held on behalf of clients at the
segregated bank accounts which are repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade

payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are denominated in HKS$.
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(a) RHEEBEXBELENE
1B 5 R

EHRRLERBBEEXSES
BPELENENE SR
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BERZEAEE EREP
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 2. ENEZERA R HEMES
FIE (\)

(b) Trade payables arising from other (b) Hth ¥ FrELWES
businesses BESERX
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on REZBHZENE SHK
the invoice date, is as follows: HZEREDIT25T -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
0 — 30 days 0&230H 290 7,578
31 - 60 days 31260H 306 4,572
61 — 90 days 61%290H - 8,118
Over 90 days 90H K + - 35,433
596 55,701
The credit period on purchase of goods ranges BEEmEEHNFI0E
from 30 to 60 days (2022: 30 to 60 days). 60H (ZZE - 4 :30&60
H) e
The carrying amount of the Group's trade AEERBEMESZE
payable arising from other business are NEZEROEREENE
denominated in US$. JLEHE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29.fHEABE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEAEMR BEEEAREAE
2023 2022 2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TREL TER TRET

Within one year —FR 767 1,382 752 1,310
In the second to EF_FREREF

fifth years, inclusive (BREEEMTF) - 767 - 752

767 2,149 752 2,062

Less: Future finance charges B ERANBER (15) (87) [ NIATERA  NATER

Present value of lease obligations ~ HEETHE 752 2,062 752 2,062

Less: Amount due for settlement 5 : 128 B W 2

within 12 months (shown HeEme®
under current liabilities) (RRBaE
BTE5) (752) (1,310)
Amount due for settlement 1218 F 18 3 8
after 12 months BEEMSE - 752
All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$. FrEHREaBEHAEBTE.
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease EARMHEAGENEEERTN
liabilities is 5% (2022: 5%). ERS5% (ZE__F:5%)-°
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE=—Z-=F+=-A=+—-HLFE
30. BANK LOAN 30. RITE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Secured bank loan HEFIETER 1,401 2,177

Scheduled payment terms of fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂzﬁ'%i%
bank loan contain a repayment on &R A S ES
demand clause (shown under BB G
current liabilities): (BIATESEE) :

?

Within one year —F A 824 776
More than one year, 8 38— FFE R B M

but within two years 577 824
More than two years, BEMFEETBBRF

but within five years - 577

1,401 2,177

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK$.

The average interest rate at 31 December 2023 was
6.07% (2022: 6.07%).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Group’s bank
loan was guaranteed by (i) Mr. Ma Pun Fai, a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and (ii) the HKMC
Insurance Limited of HK$3,420,000.

The Group's bank borrowings contain clauses which
give the banks the right at their sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

AEBEEENREENRE T
B

R—ZE-_=ZF+=-_RA=+—H
HFEHFRE607T% (ZE =
F:6.07%) °

BN ZZE
+_A=+—"H8B XEBEZR
TERIIBEG AR A — B
REZ —REEBWELER
(INBEARBFRBRBERRAZ
3,420,000 JTHEAR

ZK%%E?T%?X@W’*{I ;oA
i AN & B 2 BT R KRR
TEETT%EE’J}&?KEE % M
WHERRGETRITEENBER
FSRARN & B BN E AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

30. BANK LOAN (continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
loan covenants. Its repayments up to date are in
accordance with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans. The Group does not consider that the
banks will probably exercise their discretions to
demand repayments so long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 6(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised
by the Group.

30. RITE K (&)

31.

AEEEHEREARLTDEST
ERAE - -EBEERNERT
RE RE R E KA RAETT -
AEERRREASBHBEEN
BREMRE  BRIT T KRAEETT
EHEEREFNHBEE - ARAA
SERBETRREENE -
FHBHENGEE P BHRERME
6(d) °

ELEBEAEE

PATR 73 7K & B R 58 A R ST 77 IR
BE-

Provision

of ECL

BHEE

BiERAE

HK$'000

FETT
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, WRZTZZF—H—H"

1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 —ZE-—"F#+-_HA=+—H"

—EC=F-F—HRK

—E=F+ZH=+—H 23

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$383,550,000
(2022: HK$386,550,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
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B 1& FER B a A 8 R A 18
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

At 1 January and 31 December, R—A—H&K

ordinary share of HK$0.006 +-A=+—-8"
0.006/8 72 & MK

Issued and fully paid: ERTRMR:

At 1 January, ordinary share of ~ ®—A—H " 0.006
HK$0.006 Bz EBKR

Issue of shares upon exercise of 771 BB I 1B RS 17
share options (note) fkth (M)

At 31 December, ordinary share W+ -A=+—H"
of HK$0.006 0.006/ L2 L 38 it

note:

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

32. A&
2023 2022
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
EEREA £ LERHE 28
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TR T 7
100,000,000 600,000 100,000,000 600,000
1,538,537 9,231 1,492,937 8,958
- - 45,600 273
1,538,537 9,231 1,538,537 9,231
HEt -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 45,600,000
options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$0.078
per share, resulting in the issuance of 45,600,000 new
shares of HK$0.006 each. Proceeds from exercising the
share options amounted to approximately HK$3,556,000.

B2 -_—F#+-_A=+—HI
FE 0 45,600,0001) B AR L 1T
EFR0.078E L ETF  BEEETT
45,600,0000% % I E {80.006% 7T &Y
MR GD - TEEREMS KBNS
3,556,000/% 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32. lRAS (%)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to
reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are: (i) in order to maintain its listing
on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; (i) to meet
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings; and (iii) minimum capital and liquid
capital requirements by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, the Group complied with the above liquid
capital requirements.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the
non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing borrowing for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-T-_=F+_-A=1+—HLtEE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 23 December 2021, the Company adopted the
new Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) and
to terminate the old Share Option Scheme ("Old
Scheme"”) for the purpose of rewarding participants
who have contributed to the Group and to provide
incentives to work towards the success of the
Company.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of
directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible persons (including directors, employees and
consultants) to subscribe for the Company’s shares.

The exercise price of the share options under
the Scheme is determined by the directors of the
Company, and must be at least the higher of: (a) the
average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of offer of the share
options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the relevant date of offer of the share
options, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

33. AR HER 2K

IR EEE 2 B R ERT 2
REARABRERR-_T-—%
T A +=BETHRRE
BIRE L@BBZRHER NAA
Ranzh Bt & ([%at8))
W #& 1 E W IR &) ([ & &
g UEBHAKEFEHRE
Ble2mE WHBRER/RA
A2 RN MES )

RIEHE B ARAEFETH
BREASERAL (RIEE
¥ E B RER) TR
RIA R AR -

ZAr Bl BRETEERAAR
AEFET WAZELRUTR
2E QERXEHEBEREEY
FHMA A EEXERNBIME
BHREXRBSLZARR KD F
Y HE: (b)EHEEREED
FMRERXMERRERSH
ZARDB DR TE A MA
REZEB: R(ARDA KM
[ {E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 3B.URGAER 2R (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% in
nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in issue
on the date of adoption (“Scheme Mandate Limit").

Options previously granted under the Old Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the terms or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed.

At any time, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options which
then has been granted and have yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of
Shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant together with
a remittance of HK$1 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercise during such
period as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme

(continued)

The following table discloses the details of the
Company's share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2023:

Category Date of grant

£5 b=k

Director

iz

CHOW Hei Yin Terry 8 April 2021

BEE “Z--¥mANA
HUANG Zhi 8 April 2021

BV “FC-EMANA
Employee 8 April 2021

8 “R--EmANE

Exercisable at the end of the year

Weighted average exercise price

Exercise price
per share

ERTEMA

0.1066

0.1066

0.1066

Exercise period
TREH

8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023

“FC-EMANRE
ZEIZEMALA

8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023

“FC-EMANRE
ZEIZEMALR

8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023
“EC-EMANRE

ZRCZEMALA

RERTATE

nETHHRE

Notes

()

()

@

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

3.URMAERER 2 AR (&)
LIRS E 2 B IR EST S
(&)
TEREBEBRAQNABREMNFS
UWEREBEE - =+ A
=T BLFEANE

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2023 Cancelled/lapsed 31.12.203
R-Bzzf Grant Exercise  during the year R-B-=Zf
—-A-8  during the year during the year RERZE/ TZA=1-R
HATE RERRH RERTE % HAGE
6,304,000 - - (6,304,000) -
6,304,000 - - (6,304,000) -
50,432,000 - - (50,432,000) -
63,040,000 - - (63,040,000) -

HK$0.106678 70

NATER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

. ~ =) =
33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 3B.URMGBER AR (80

Equity-settled share option scheme UREEE 2 BRESTE

(continued) (#&)

The following table disclose the details of the TERBEBRALAIERENFE

Company’s share options and the movements during NEREBE-_ZT-_—_F+=A

the year ended 31 December 2022: =t+t—HIEFERNE

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2022 Cancelled/lapsed 31.12.2022
Exercise price it 3 Grant Exerdse  duringtheyear ~ R=F==F

Category Date of grant per share Exercise period Notes —A-H  duringthe year  during the year REREHE/ t=A=1-A

£5l RLAH SRTRE  REE it HRATE RERRE RERTE b3 MR

Director

£

CHOW Hei Yin Terry 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @) 6,304,000 - - - 6,304,000

F#E “E--¥MANR “F-EMANBE

“EC-ERALA

HUANG Zhi 8 Aprl 2021 0.1066 8 Aprl 2021107 Aprl 203 9 6,304,000 - - - 6,304,000
Ev “Z--ERANA “F--§MANRE
“3ICERALA

ZHU Yugi 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - (7,607,000) -
£¥3 ZZ-RERANA “ECEERFRE
“E-ZFRALA

MAN Yuan 8 May 2020 0.0780 8May 200107 May 2022 (b) 7,607,000 - - (7,607,000) -
wE “ECTERANA “F-FFRAN\AE
“R--FRALA

MA Kin Ling 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - (7,607,000) -
iz ZZ-RERANA “ECEERFRE
“E-ZFRALA

Employee 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 45,642,000 - (45,600,000 (43,000) -
& Z3Z2ERANA “ECEERF\RE
“E-ZFRALA

8 Aprl 2021 0.1066 8 Apil 2021107 Aprl 203 (3) 50,432,000 - - - 50,432,000
“ZC-ERANA ZEC-ERMANRE
“3ICERALA

131,503,000 - (5600000 (22,863,000) 63,040,000

Exercisable at the end of the year RERTTR 63,040,000

Weighted average exercise price METHAER HK$0.09175 7T HKS0.10667E T

notes: it -

(a) 63,040,000 options granted on 8 April 2021 are (@) RZEZ—FMHANBRAKH
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing 2.63,040,00017 i fix # B 7 %
price of the shares of the Company immediately HEBEKGE ZEERE
before the grant date of the share options on 8 April RHBHZAARRROHRZ
2021 was HK$0.1066 per share. T_—FHANAZKRTER

P%0.1066% 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

notes:

(b) 76,070,000 options granted on 8 May 2020 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 8 May
2020 was HK$0.078 per share.

No share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 45,600,000 share
options were exercised). The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year ended 31 December
2023 was HK$Nil (2022: HK$0.078). The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of Nil (2022: 0.25)
year. During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
share option was granted (2022: nil).

There was no market vesting condition or non-
market performance condition associated with the
options granted.

3.URGAER 2N (&

UREEE 2 BRETE
()
EE

by RZE-ZZFEFHRANHEHMAKH
276,070,00017 B i # B R 1%
0B EA BN B o X R AR A
REHBHZAARRRNARZ
T-EFRANBZKRTEE
BFHR0.078/5 It °

%ZI:E:ZEwL:ﬁJ

mﬂ_%ﬁ::i 45, 600000
MEBEREETHE) BHEZZT
—ZFf+-_A=Z+—HLEFE
BETEBRENITE B BN
BEHRERSEET(ZE ==
F:00788BTL) cRFERMEAKRIT
FrERENNEFLSFHE
HWER AT (ZEZ=4:0.25
F)o BE-_ZT-_=ZF+=A
S+ HLEFE BMERDER
B(ZEZZF:\)-

MEADEHBRERENT
LR BRI RIEMHRBEMS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—=%

—=F+-A=+—HLEFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the

Company

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other payables
Amounts due to
subsidiaries

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

34. AR B Z B BN R K A
B2

(a) AR 2B BAMRR K

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
ERBEE
KRB AR ZIRE 169 179
ﬁiﬁfﬁé
e FERRER
ﬁmﬁuﬁm 7,622 3,894
e UK B BB 90,457 93,496
RITHE R 1,124 1,189
99,203 98,579
REBAEE
TR ST &
H b e AT 3K 3,170 3,314
JEhLBﬁJ;' /TQ\
27,694 27,696
30,864 31,010
REBEEFH 68,339 67,569
EEFRE 68,508 67,748
BAR#E
& Z< 9,231 9,231
1 59,277 58,517
4R 68,508 67,748

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

ZHU Yuqi
KFEH
Director

EF

MBEBRREN_F_M+F
At \BEEZ=SH#
EREETIED Wi THE
ERRFE

Tong Hei Ming Andrew
BE=#S

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE

34. AR ) Z B B AR R R A
HEE (&)

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) ATz EEEE

(b) Reserve movement in the Company

Share
Share Contributed options
Premium surplus reserve
RBRE BARE BRERE  Accumulated
(note 35(b)(i))  (note 35(bJfiii))  (note 35(b)(v)) losses Total
(WE350)0))  (HE350)0)  (KE350)v) 2iER &g
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL THR Tén Tén THTL
At 1 January 2022 WZB--F-f-H 123,358 522,104 5,078 (561,313) 89,227
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ AEEERREALZAE
for the year - - - (33,993) (33,993)
Issue of share upon exercise of share RMIEERERRIRN
options (note 32) (H7:232) 4,759 - (1,476) - 3,283
Share options lapsed BREX K - - (783) 783 -
At 31 December 2022 and RZBZZF+ZA=1+-H
1 January 2023 k-f-=%-f-H 128,117 522,104 2,819 (594,523) 58,517
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ AEERFIR2ALEAE
for the year - - - 760 760
Share options lapsed BREXN - - (2,819) 2,819 -
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=5+-A=1-H 128,117 522,104 - (590,944 59,277
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

35. RESERVES 35. 1%

(a) Group (a) &

The amounts of the Group's reserves and PN

movements therein are presented in the C
consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income and consolidated 3] o

statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) f&

(1) Share premium (1)

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share and
after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares. Pursuant to the
Companies Law of the Bermuda, funds in
the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of

£E

EEFEECERALE
BABRREMEER
HERGAEZEHER

BeHEREN
R % 1B

R aEENERESR
BREEZERETR
BB IR E AL 3T
NI BITR AT E £
ZHEB - REABRER
AE AR RIRMDRE
EMESAIDEKTAR
AR EEEEES
K EH ARAKE
BE—MREBBEFRE
B2 BT

business.

(i) Other capital reserve (i) Bt ELXEE
Other capital reserve represents the HiERFEEBIIERA
difference between the nominal value of SEWENRBARZH

the share capital and the share premium
of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE
35. f# 8 (&)
(b) EBz2MEREMN (&)

35. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)

(iii) Contributed surplus (iif) BN & B

(iv)

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Group and the net
asset value of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the
reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the

BMABBNEARED
BHITRAHMERRES
#H 25 18 X 3 i A W B Y
MEAREEFENE
B e

(iv) 25t i

BEHEREMARER
BRI RBMBRERE

translation of the financial statements of EHINEZEFE R
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with BIRGRE MR M5
in accordance with the accounting policies 4(b) FT & B0 & 5T R B
set out in note 4(b) to the consolidated Bo

financial statements.

(v) Share options reserve

(v) FERER1E

The share option reserve represents the fair BERERBODRAEKT
value of the actual or estimated number rEEESF EEME

of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and consultants of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(o) to the
consolidated financial statements.

BARTTEBBENE R
HAEET BB R TE
RIFARE MR
4(0) A AR EE B0
il 2 NRPTRAE S
ATIBUR AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. AAFRETEMBATZF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15
Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company at KA EFTEWBE QTR RS HA
the end of the reporting period are set out below. RKZFHBEYWT -
Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fis ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
il Pk FEE A g5 ERfTRE 3] IEXH
2023 2022
Directly held 75 -
China Guoxin SunCorp Financial  British Virgin Ordinary Us$100 70% 70% Investment holding
Holdings Limited Island (“BVI")
THACHECRARARAT EBRLHS([R TRR 100%7 RELERK
BEZEER])
WELL SMOQTH LIMITED BvI Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
iERUBE  EBR 10,000%70 RELK

Indirectly held: B## 5 -

Worldwide Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Processing and trading of

(Hong Kong) Limited used computer-related
components

RRETHR(BR)RRAA  BR Lk 1T _FERARANRER
g5

CASHCOW FINANCE (HK) LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Money lending business

PRIEE (BE)ERAR i Bk 10,000,000 ¢ nEEHE

Suncorp Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,000 100% 100% Provision of securities

brokerage, placing and
underwriting services

HEEFARAT (30 Lk 76,000,000 REESEE RER
BHRH
BILLION MAX INTERNATIONAL ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100% Sales of clothes and beauty
LIMITED products
ARARERAH B Lk 1007 HEREREAEm
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the years end 31 December
2023 and 2022, or at any time during the years end
31 December 2023 and 2022.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flow were, or future
cashflows will be classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

36.

37.

wra MR MR

To=Ft+ZA=+-HLEE

ARABREEMBLRRZHF
5 (40

RRBEERR ERATIIARSE
BHBAREAKE 2 XE
HEEELETERE KARQTA
BEEZER JHEMMERT
ZHAEB RN IR

REBEE-_T_=Fk=-_FT=-_=
F+-_A=1+—HBIEFEEXRSK
HE-_Z_=—FK-_FT-_=
+_A=+—HItFEREM
B R KW%@E@%%ﬁE@
1$ i% A

RERERERME

(a) MEEBELE < EEY
iR

TRAFLAEERERE
EENAEEE BERE
MR cBEH - MEETIHM
EENBBOIRREAE
ERHARKRRERERR
REBHZEHEERERNA
DTHREMERDELZA
f&e

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &% 167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] =

i T R R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

37.ZEREREBRME (4D

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) MEETBELE cBEY

financing activities (continued) i (&)
Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
RITER HEESE Mt
(note 30) (note 29)
(BF&E30) GEYE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—A—H 2,177 2,062 4,239
Interest charged BB S 107 72 179
Interest paid EAE (107) (72) (179)
Financing cash flows MERERE (776) (1,252) (2,028)
Termination of lease BILHEE - (58) (58)
At 31 December 2023 H-ZT - =4
+-A=+—H 1,401 752 2,153
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—_F—A—H 2,905 3,366 6,271
Interest charged B2 EH & 155 137 292
Interest paid ERAE (155) (137) (292)
Financing cash flows MERERE (728) (1,304) (2,032)
At 31 December 2022 H-T -~
+-A=+—H 2,177 2,062 4,239
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—ZT-_=F+-A=+—HLEE
37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. 455 HERERMET (@)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZHESRHEE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement FAGEEREERERAKNEA
of cash flows for lease comprise the following: 7 7 fgf EI’J SHEBEENUNTE

18 -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
Within operating cash flows BREERERE 218 197
Within financing cash flows BREEREMRE 1,252 1,304
1,470 1,501

These amounts relate to the following: ZECHHENTSEBEAR:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Lease rental paid ENHEERS 1,470 1,501
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37.8RERERME (&)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary

(c) HE—RBKHBLQA
RZE_=F+AH+—H"
AEBELEREHBEAR
Bl Suncorp Group Limited X

On 11 October 2023, the Group disposed its
subsidiaries, namely Suncorp Group Limited and
Suncorp Global Limited.

HEIRIRBR AR -

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REEBBH 2 BEFEN
follows: T:

HK$'000

FHET

Bank balances RITAEER 68
Trade payables and other payables JE & 5 BR 3% % Hth & <P 5K I8 (29,321)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HEK B AR 2= (Ki#9) (29,253)
Total consideration BB —*
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELEZREMEFE:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HERS MBS EEER (68)

* consideration less than HK$1,000.

(d) Major non-cash transaction

* KF1,0008 TR (B ©

d) TBFEERS

RAFE BREREFE
498,506,000/ L Ty A £
& 548,506,000/ T (BN 4
HREME) G-

During the year, loan and interest receivables of
approximately HK$8,506,000 is settle by listed
securities of HK$8,506,000 which represents the
market price of settlement date.
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39.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management
personnel

Key management personnel are the directors of the
Company. The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 HATE A

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 March 2024.

38.

39.

40.

e M RRME
LoZHE+ZA=t—HLEFE
FREE

W R AR E Y W E A
REME:

BEALRS

Bréra MMk Mo T
BHEEANTR S RESHIN K
SEFAEBEATHNRS N
T~

EEES 5

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

1,149 738
HEGZE B H|E

B2EeR _ZET_mME=A

“HNARAERREEMES
B EEK -
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Financial Summary

£

For the year ended 31 December

BZ+-HA=1t-HLEE

Bt 75 #% 2=

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—Z_-_=%+-A=1+—HI&EE
RESULTS

Revenue Wi

Profit/(loss) for the year AEZHEFN,/ (BB)
Attributable to: THALER:

Owners of the Company N/NSE 2N

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities reE
Net assets FEE

Equity attributable to owners of 72 E% B AFELG
the Company s

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET THER
202,546 173,692 199,967 128,035 66,288
(42,766) (70,107) (58,840) (57,354) 40,065
(42,766) (70,107) (58,753) (56,992) 40,070
EERAEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-B=+-H

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAET TAET TR
364,901 299,153 328,982 282,174 264,025
(55,976) (44,121) (71,974) (78,965) (20,751)
308,925 255,032 257,008 203,209 243,274
308,925 255,032 257,008 203,209 243,274
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